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November 5, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

Your Excellency and Members of the Council:

Pursuant to RSA 187-A:22, enclosed please find the Annual Report for the University System of New
Hampshire for fiscal year ended june 30, 2019. On page 23 of the report you will find the
Independent Auditor's Report reflecting the unmodified or "clean opinion" issued by KPMG, our
external independent auditors. The report was presented to and accepted by the University
System's Board of Trustees on October 25, 2019.

In addition, also attached pursuant to RSA 187-A:25-a is information provided to the USNH Audit
Committee by KPMG, its external auditors.

Please feel free to contact me with any questions on the report.

Respectfully,

CatherineO^rPfovencher

Vice Chancellor for Financial Affairs and Treasurer

Enclosures

5 Chenell Drive. Suite 301 Concord. New Hampshire 03301. usnh.edu
UNIVERSTTY OF NEW HAMPSHIRE - KEENE STATE COllEGE ' PlYMOUTH STATE UNIVERSITY ■ GRANITE STATE COLLEGE



G
r
a
n
 ic

e

,
 o)
CN

ew
Ha

nf
e

V
 • 

-.
* 

l-
.'
V-
.A
."
-"
 ^

 
-j'

 
• 

,
 

".
 

->•'

y 
V
/
-
 '

• 
•• 

;,
v^

>-
;:

1>
J'
V-
,"
 •

 
..•

 
• 

'
 •^
' 

-i
^ 

r-
 W
-j

' 
^
 r

 •
'

_?
 

. 
. 

'
 ^
.

, j
».

 "
 

^
 'y
 <
 

- K
j?

!!
'

•

6^
, 

*
 .'•

♦ 
I, 

I 
'■ 

•

.r
**

 
-

r

N 
V^

-' 
■^

■>
yy

.W
'V

'''
 

if-
 

'■ 
-T

'a

'' 
•■ 

''rs
, 

'• 
/

i
 :>

. '■
 

■■ ■
a

 , 
• •

••. 
■?

>,

.,^ 
■ 

v*-
r^

>^
- 

'A
-n

-S
'- 

-'•
• 

^•
1

 fl"
»: 

- 
I 

^ 
il

->
,■

^
 It
 

• 
••

v
.\
 

'X
vi

.A
^

•v
li
 ^

'-
is

a
: 

-

<
s

\

tJ
A

J
2

^



University System
of New H^pshire
The University System of Ne\A/ Hampshire (USNH) includes the University of New Hampshire (UNH), with campuses in Durham,

Manchester and Concord, Plymouth State University (PSU), Keene State College (KSC) and Granite State College (GSC). KSC, PSU and

UNH Durham are the three residential campuses of USNH. The system enrolls 32,000 students and is committed to providing access to

affordable, high-quality education and to creating a talented workforce to sen/e the state's businesses and communities. A 29-member

board of trustees is responsible for overseeing the system. The chancellor is the chief executive and academic officer of USNH and is

responsible for developing, recommending and implementing the board's policies and decisions.

2 1 University System of New Hampshire
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University System of New Hampshire

1. University of New Hampshire, Durham

2. UniversityofNewHampshire,Manchester

3. UNH Franklin Pierce School of Law, Concord

4. Plymouth State University

5. Keene State College

6. Granite State College, Concord

7. Granite State College, Conway

8. Granite State College, Manchester

9. Granite State College, Nashua (Colocation)

10. Granite State College, Portsmouth

11. Granite State College, Rochester

The 2019 Annual Report is a publication of the University System of New Hampshire. Prior year University System annual reports are available online at
httpsy/www.usnh.edu/aboui/publications. University System of New Hampshire, 5 Chenell Drive, Suite 301, Concord, NH 03301 603-862-1800.
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<SI
University of
New Hampshire

Founded in 1866,'UNH Is the state's flagship public research university, with campuses in
Durham and Manchester, and the UNH Franklin Pierce School of Law in Concord. More than

16,000 students, representing 50 states and 71 countries, attend UNH, which offers 130 un
dergraduate and 70 graduate programs of study. UNH is awarded more thai^lTO million in
competitive research funding each year, and was ranked among the top 50 pub^^iversitles
in the nation, from among 629 ranked by US. News& l'Vor/dffeport^oi^019^^rej^^^,000
NH businesses receivedirecLoneon-onejssistancefrojri'UNfl ey^year^^

, holds the nation's largest undergraduate conference of its kind, featuririg nearly 2,000 o ̂  - - -
students who presenufi'ei^projecits each^spring..UNH Extension provides research, , .
el^rtiseand outreach pf^ramming,wi^ moreth'an 114,000 residents participating in
worl^liopsTvolunteer trainings, on'?^6n-orie consultations and courses.

Fi^ST.FACTS
- $jl 5 billion generated for NH's economy each year ' .
- $100 million+awarded in corhpetitive research grants each year >- i "

-top 5 in US for intellectual property law ' • ' ,
- il00+-million in financial aid awarded annually
11 < □

• - 84% of first-time, full-time students receive financiafaid
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Plymouth State
^UNIVERSITY:

rai

atjvanoes, he^ltf^er.jiyigg and ojl^ral eniichme^t with a speclil coniniitrTlei4|ofUrvl«tptfi^
S?Nor^^Gwnt^^ of New Hampshire. With an enrollment oHpproximately 4,000
^^unj^radjate andjZQOOgradua^ stud^ts, ttje university cojifers BA, BFaI ̂nd BS degrees;

masterirdegrees; ̂rtificata of advanced graduate studies (CAGS); and doctoral ̂degrees in higher;'
i  '^uati^lMmirig^i^ersKip, andcommuhit^ji^'pf^ Sfilcjents choose from 53 "
t—I undergraduate m^ors (inciuding afriewlRol5otics discipiine);60 minofsrand M graduate degree

and cetWcatioh'programs, with studies in.the art /business, education humanities and the
-al and soclaljciencei u II y| Li.ij,Q] u.y(j

..xJP PiQi- MQ]i "
- Student-mn Compass'Marketing Group provides digital marketing.supppji

.  ■ Direct student contriljution ffdm'out of state'each year ='$5Zmlllion^
f - - (i ' II - l| - i' - — l it '
! • - Studentsplaced In 115 organizations to support NH nonprofits uV-

: In 2017, PSD rarikecl first among publio^olleges and universities acrosslthe coui
^  i/ . ...fP—:.,''. •- llfv 111 ijV: - '
tojmprov^e students'critical thinking abilities Y

L -=L.18:l:student:tO:faculty ratio (incTudes^ur^er^^ and grad)jj

services
- -i

..1
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Granite StStej^lle^

With a focus on adult studentsand other individuaispho seek a ftedble^aming environment GSC
provides compre^^slve acces^hi^Qducafion. "niiifeTmitm'ent^icres^be?
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- student where they are presents the opportunity to achiy an affordable college^^ucatldh whllg^
balandhgllfe'spthWesponsibllities such as work7femily and community obli^^A^ith^  associate, ba^lort^ rnSePs^^^^p^iia^^ programs for ̂ adiers, aedit^prior^y ' i

'i leaminganda'\ra5^pftransferopportunities,'&G^phasizespracticalandrelevantareKCifstudy
that are resporttlye to fe vra1<f^ developnjent l^mpshire's econorfiy.„
FASTFACPTS - ^ . > - . \ V - : . :FAST FACTS

I  ;- Ranked #1 in New Hampshire and #1t1;in US for 2019 Best Col!(^es/fpijJdult Leamers,'
lYos/i/ngfon Monthly ^ "u ^ ^ ^ \ r-

- 80% of enrollments are online' ̂
- #76 In US for 2019 Best Online Bachelor's Prbgrams„iyS News & WorldRepom

I  r=3i .5==S7 *--r ,•*: o\
- #47 in US for 2019 Best Online Bachelor's Programs for Veterans, US News & World R^rtj

I  II /■ . ' \\ J ^ \ j Q'v'O- 78% of^studenjte llve^in New Ham^Khi^ / \\ ^ '
-90%ofstudentsworkinfullorpart-tim?jobs : V) ..
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Chancellor's Letter

o

As the state's four-year public higher education system, the University System of New/ Hampshire is particularly
focused on serving the needs of New Hampshire, with a public mission focused on our state's most urgent
workforce needs. USNH is the largest provider of our state's teachers and workers with bachelor's degrees in
science and engineering.

With support from the State, the University System is undertaking the largest single capital project it has
ever undertaken at UNH in order to address and support the needs of New Hampshire's growing biological

sciences industry.This initiative, along with targeted investments in labs in Manchester, will
also support the emerging multidisciplinary field of regenerative medicine, an industry with
which all of our institutions are engaged. In recognition of the acute shortages of health care

professionals across New Hampshire and New England, all four institutions are engaged in
expanding health care programs and capacity. A strategic investment from the State of
$9 million will support the doubling of nursing capacity at UNH, as well as address a number

of other health care-related workforce needs.

The key to preparing New Hampshire's workforce is strengthening our in-state pipeline of
educated workers, and that requires affordable access to our public colleges and universities.

Holding down costs by leveraging economies of scale across the system has long been a

focus of USNH. Those efforts have been enhanced through strategic procurement and the

aggressive management of health care benefits costs, as well as ongoing cost-containment

efforts. The governor and legislature advanced a budget that will enable the University

System to freeze tuition for the 2020-2021 academic year, sending a strong signal to students and their families
that our in-state options provide great value.

Additionally, all of our residential institutions offer the Granite Guarantee, enabling Pell-eligible New Hampshire
students to attend tuition-free. In December 2018, USNH expanded its commitment to New Hampshire students

by offering the Granite Guarantee to graduates of the Community College System of New Hampshire. The
expansion of this program now means that qualified, in-state students who receive Pell grants can attend
tuition-free when they transfer directly from the Community College System to a USNH residential institution.

New Hampshire's public four-year institutions are critical to the state's talent pipeline and serve as one of New
Hampshire's most critical economic engines.The University System will continue to work to maximize the
return on investment for the State, our students and their families, ensuring that we deliver state-of-the-art

solutions that empower our workforce to advance the quality of life of our residents and communities.

Todd Leach

Chancellor

6 I UnivefSity System of New Hampshire



USNH is the Most Administratively
Efficient System in the Northeast

USNH is the most admiriistratively efficient public 4-year system

in the Northeast, and it is more efficient than NH's private 4-year

not-for-profit sector, according to data from the National Center

for Education Statistics, Integrated Postsecondary Education Data

System (IPED5).

USNH's administrative expense on a per-student basis is lower than

that of any public 4-year system in the Northeast, which includes New

England, Pennsylvania, New York and New Jersey. Expenses include

support for executive management, fiscal operations, general

administration, public relations, fundraising and development and

administrative IT,

Administrative Efficiency
Institutional support expense per student FIE

$6,000
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Moody's Affirms Bond Ratings;
Cites USNH's Strong Fiscal Oversight

Citing strong fiscal management and leadership team,

rating agency reaffirms USNH bond ratings

At a time when credit rating agencies are giving higher education a

negative outlook, the University System of New Hampshire had its

strong credit rating affirmed with a stable outlook by Moody's

Investors Service.

In its credit opinion, Moody's stated, "The stable outlook reflects

our expectation that the system will maintain positive operating

performance despite stagnant state support. We expect the

system's strong leadership team will carefully navigate a challenging

state funding environment and focus on stabilizing enrollment to

produce ongoing positive operating margins."
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Degree Completion

USNH ranks 1 st in New England {and the Northeast) and
3rd in the U.S. among public systems for bachelor's
degree completion.

NH/USNH 78.9%

VT 78.1%

MA 74.7%

CT 72.8%

ME 56.5%

Source: National Student Clearinghouse. R1 omitted for technical reasons

Student Loan Default

USNH consistently ranks among the top systems in the U.S. with the
lowest average loan default.

11.5%

10.1%

NH Private 4 Yr

US. All Sectors

US. Public 4 Yr

Northeast Public 4 Yr

New England Public 4 Yr

NH/USNH

Source: National Student Loan Data System

8 I University System of New Hampshire



"Coming cn every dsy mr*
vvor>^ wtth on irvMtK
thot'8 what drtves me

-RobynOOiA
Wto £3C!S*

UNMCCssa'W®

NH Employment Distribution
Across NH Industries Overall &

USNH In-state Graduates

The industries chosen by NH graduates with bachelor's

degrees from the University System align with the
workforce needs of our state.

Average In-State Cost of
Attendance for NH 4-Year
Colleges and Universities

Average undergraduate net price after all grant and scholarship aid.
Price includes tuition, mandatory fees, books and supplies, room and
board and other expenses as calculated for financial aid.

NH WORKFORCE INDUSTRY USNH GRAOS IN NH

I
I

Health Car^ Sodal Svc

Education

Retail

Manufacturing

Accommodation, Food Sw

PuUc Admin, Govl

ProfeuionalSd/TechSK

AdmlnissatfM, Mtote Mgmt

Rnance, Hsurance

Other Misc

Wholesaie

Other-Service

Construction

Arts, Entertainment

Information

20% 1S% 10% S% 0% 0% 5% 10% 1S% 20%

Source: USNH analysis of NH Employment Security data

SNHU $40,617

St.Anselm $31,268

Dartmouth $30,421

NHInstofArt $28,458

Colby-Sawyer $27,085

NEC $26,966

MEDIAN $25,748

UNH $24,529

Franklin Pierce $24,266

Rivler $23,922

PSU $21,829

KSC $19,545

GSC $13,911

Source: U.S. Department of Education, U.S. College Scorecard

University System of New Hampshire I 9
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USNH awards 200 bachelor's
and advanced nursing
degrees annually.

Nursing Graduates

Since the program began in 1965, more than 2,500 students have

graduated from a UNH nursing program. This year, UNH enrolled

80 students into the entry-level nursing program. UNH's family nurse

practitioner graduate program enrolled 78 students last year and,

overall, more than 70 percent of those who graduate praaice in

New Hampshire.

10 I Univefsiiy System of New Hampshire
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"At a time when New Hampshire's primary care shortage leaves dozens

ofopenings basically unfilled each year, nurses must step up and assume
greater leadership roles in healthcare. UNH makes this easier by educating
generations of students in the evidence-based practice and independent

thinking for which UNH is recognized nationally and globally."

- UNH alumna Christina Ferrer! '02G

Elliott Health System
President of the New Hampshire Nurse Practitioner Association

Rural Telehealth

The new Telehealth Practice Center is bringing cutting edge

health care technologies to UNH to ensure that students and

NH's health care providers are equipped to provide innovative

care to the most rural areas of the state. Student enrollment in

telehealth courses tripled from 2018 to 2019.

Health Care Partnerships

More than 1,900 providers in the state who deliver care to 50 percent

of the population have partnered with UNH's Institute for Health Policy

and Praaice to improve health care praaices throughout the

Granite State.

University System of New Hampshire I 11



*'-y'

' \ r-
- ̂

Ten's Story . .

Nursing Exi^rience:

■33 Years as an RN

: Education Background: ;.'
•-Nursing Diplonna :r •!

■  1 graduated with a'djplorria Irjridrsing from Concord
Hospitaf ̂ hoot of Nursing in the! 1980s and today I am
amaternalhealthnurse. , '■

3f3ursingcho^^ krHewJ wouid be a nurse and
never thought about another career. >•

A.*

m

< V

.  , . . I
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'■ touseofchanges;in the health care^eld, many
experienced RNs with nursing diplomas, like me, are
being asked to add a bachelor's.degree to their,
credentials and experience:"",

it was not rny choice to return to college - it was ^
requir^. However, itwasmychoiceto~attendGranite'v
State. I emt5faced the experience, put my heart Into 'vV^
and I am proud that l'\yill have my BSN soon!_,.^'' ?,

' c - r •
;  '• ' .* .'*5' I*' •• • • ^ i



Partnerships within Public Higher Ed

GSC Invests Over $450,000 in
Advancing the Nursing Workforce

Since the inception of the RN to BSN Pathway, a partnership between the Community College

System of New Hampshire (CCSNH) and USNH, Granite State College has made significant

investments in the nursing workforce by offering a competitive, seamless, affordable, efficient

and 100% online bachelor of science (BSN) in nursing degree, thereby, building a bridge

between the state's two public higher educatbn systems When a NH resident graduates from

CGNH with a conferred associate degree in nursing (ADN), they become eligible for the RN to

BSN Pathway scholarship at GSC which reduces the per-credit cost of tuition for accepted and

qualified students to a rate equal to the CCSNH tuition rate.

1

VJt

Keene State College and Community College
System Open Doors to Four-Year Degrees

Keene State College and the Community College System of New Hampshire (CCSNH)

are partnering to share administrative and classroom space on Keene State's campus,

broadening opportunities for affordable educational offerings in the Monadnock region

and offering seamless transfer pathways to four-year degrees for CCSNH students.

Starting in the fall of 2020, River Valley Community College will teach its courses in Keene

State's classrooms and laboratories. By the fall of 2020, community college leaders

expect to add an associate degree in accounting as well as a licensed practical nurse

program in Keene. 'We are proud to partner with CCSNH to leverage our strengths and build

a network of learning opportunities that meet the needs of people throughout their lifetimes.

This is the kind ofeffort our state needs, and this is what New Hampshire residents deserve.'

- Dr. Melinda Treadwell, Keene State College President

^RM

^

OPT Program at PSU

The Plymouth State University Doctor of

Physical Therapy (DPT) degree program

is the first offered by a public institution

of higher education in New Hampshire.

The program features early opportunities

for clinical practice that are sustained

through to graduation.The programs focus

on experiential learning, applied research,

regional service and leadership.These

program graduates will be positioned to

enter their fields ready to practice and

engage in life-long learning, innovation

and transformation.

Expanding Addiction
Treatment Professionals

UNH's NH Citizens Health Initiative is

partnering with the Department of Nursing

to empower more than 150 nurse

practitioners with expertise to take on

new substance abuse patients via training,

guidance and a learning network that allows

them to prescribe medications to those in

need. The program connects UNH nurse

practitioner students with specialists via

video conferencing so remote providers

can be available yet remain at their own

clinics to treat patients.

University System of New Hampshire 1 13
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Plymouth State University Hosts Inaugural Governor's Cup FIRST®
NH Robotics Competition
New Hampshire Governor Chris Sununu, FIRST* New Hampshire, the University System of New Hampshire, the Community College System
of New Hampshire, Eversource, BAE Systems and Fidelity have partnered to present The Governor's Cup - an off-season robotics competi
tion for the state's high school FIRST Robotics Competition teams hosted at PSU. In addition to providing the state's high school robotics
teams an opportunity to compete prior to the official FIRST Robotics Competition season, up to 50 high school
seniors had the opportunity to earn one-semester scholarships to New Hampshire's public institutions.

I  I

14 I University System of New Hampshire
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"We teamed up with the University System, Community

College System and FIRST to create The Governor's Cup.

The Governor's Cup is a truly unique opportunity for

students from all across our state to further develop their

STEM skills In a fun and competitive environment."

-Governor Sununu

"This is a total

home run for

Granite State

students."

-Dean Kamen,
founder of FIRST
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PSU Meteorology Students'
"Snowpack-Sensors" Aid
Avalanche and Flooding Analysis

A group of undergraduates, graduate students, and researchers

designed, built and deployed low-cost devices during the

2018-2019 winter season to better predict mountain avalanches.

Flooding is a major concern throughout New Hampshire, and the PSU

sensors record snow depth and temperature - important feciors used

in flooding forecasts. Commercially available recorders can be cost-

prohibitive, but the PSU-built versions were built for approximately

$300 each. Students gained first-hand experience assembling and test
ing the units that were constructed from off-the-shelf components.

IK

PSU Brings High-Tech Robotics
Programs to the North Country

Plymouth State University expanded NH's first bachelor's degree

program in robotics with a dedicated assembly and experimentation

area in a new makerspace.The electromechanical technology and

robotics (EMTR) program integrates electromechanics, microcon

trollers, software and computer science with artistic design to build

and design real-world automation systems.These students graduate

prepared for in-demand jobs while becoming innovators

and entrepreneurs.

Keene State Prepares Optics
Engineering Workforce Through
Industry Partnerships

Responding to requests by regional optics engineering and

precision manufacturing companies, Keene State College has

initiated the development of credential and degree programs in

this field. The curricula is being developed through a partnership
joining KSC faculty and industry leaders in the region - BAE Systems,

Corning, Moore Nanotech, SlingRay, Chroma Technologies and Omega

Optical. As a result of this collaboration, Keene State leaders are now in

the process of identifying capital investment opportunities to develop

the Monadnock Business Partnership Hub, a physical space that will be

home to the new optics program as well as other regional workforce

development partnerships.

UNH Manchester Launches

Cybersecurlty Engineering
Program to Meet Market
Demand for Talent

In response to increasing market demand to protect against severe

cyber threats and data breaches, UNH Manchester launched a

master's degree program in cybersecurity engineering for the fall

2018 term. Cybersecurity jobs in the state are predicted to grow by

28 percent over the next 10-year period. This new program will help

to build that workforce by preparing graduates to develop, engineer

and operate secure information systems.

ill'

I
'There is a growing investment in cybersecurity, a growing need for

cybersecurity professionals and a growing gap between that need

and workforce supply," said Mike Decelle, dean of UNH Manchester

and board member for the New Hampshire Tech Alliance.

University System of New Hampshire I 17
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GSC Awards College Credit to
First Responders for Their Training
Supporting public service professionals

Granite State College offers college credit for a pre-approved range

of law enforcement, firefighter and EfvIT training. These programs

help to propel public service professionals toward a four-year degree,

strengthening their leadership capacity and preparing them for

advanced positions.

"Education raises the bar for your own level
of knowledge and increases the confidence

that we have in ourselves and that the public

has in us"

-Dawn Shea'18
Detective Sergeant
Allenstown, NH

GSC Honored for Best Online

Bachelor's Programs and Top
College for Adult Learners

For the seventh year in a row. Granite State College has achieved a

top-100 ranking for its online degree programs from U.S. News&World

Report. GSC is #76 among a pool of more than 1,700 institutions that

were surveyed for online bachelor's programs nationwide. The online

graduate business programs (non-MBA) garnered a #94 ranking. In

2019, GSC also celebrated its #11 ranking from Washington Monthly

for Best Colleges for Adult Learners (4-year).
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UNH Extension Wins National Honors for
Community and Economic Development

UNH Extension improves citizens' lives and our state's economy by fostering workforce

development, healthy families, sustainable natural resources and collaborative solutions

for the state's most pressing issues. With nearly 100 employees staffing offices in all 10
NH counties. Extension has far-reaching impact in every Granite State community.

This year saw phenomenal growth of Nature Groupie - a state-of-the-art online

platform created in partnership with UNH Innovations - connecting energized

citizens with important conservation projects in need of volunteers. To date, nearly

6,000 Nature Groupie volunteers have helped to clean rivers, restore wildlife habitats,

maintain trails, plant trees and do research for more than 200 environmental organizations.

In 2019, the program was trademarked and plans are in place for a sustainable national

rollout of this market-based approach to achieving the public good.
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National Guard: Spotlight on Granite State College
Recruiters believe that a key incentive for joining the National Guard is the promise of a free college education at USNH schools. Many who
choose this path are part of the student body at Granite State College. Guardsmen are our citizen-soldiers who, in addition to their military
responsibilities, have families, jobs and bills to pay. Granite State's focus on adult learners fits with their lifestyles and GSC's flexibility allows them
to pursue their education even while deployed.

Our Guardsmen have conducted international combat operations in the Middle-East and been involved in humanitarian missions in Central
America and across the U.S. First-hand experiences of other cultures and viewpoints from across the globe inform their participation in the
classroom and bring the world home to New Hampshire. Granite State College provides these service members with more than just diplomas;
it provides fundamental professional development. GSC programs develop better communicators and critical thinkers and hone technical and
management skills that Guardsmen use in their civilian jobs and while on duty.

Since 2009, USNH has provided NH guardsmen and women with more than 5,000 tuition waivers,
totaling nearly $18M.
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KPMG LLP

Two Financial Center

60 South Street

Boston, MA 02111

Independent Auditors' Report

The Governor and

Legislative Fiscal Committee
State of New Hampshire; and

The Board of Trustees

University System of New Hampshire;

We have audited the accompanying statements of net position of the University System of New Hampshire (the
System), a component unit of the State of New Hampshire, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018, the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the System's basic
financial statements for the years then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the net position
of the University System of New Hampshire as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net position
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMG ULP IS i O^iawa'e I'ruiea labil':v os'ine-smo ano in« U S rrenoor
tirm 0'- iV> I'.PMG neiwtyV ot :''Oecwno(?n: tronoe' lifms iitl.latao wiifi

^.PMG Iniffialional Coooorative ('(;PMG Inietnalional'). a Swiss anmv
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Emphasis of Matters

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2019 the System adopted Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, and GASB Statement No.
88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt. Including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to these matters.

Other Matter • Required Supplementary Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management's discussion and analysis on
pages 25-33 and the required supplemental information on page 50 be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although nqt a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
GASB who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic financial statements. We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

October 30, 2019
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Management's Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2019 and 2018 (Unaudited)

I. Introduction
The following Management's Discussion and Analysis summarizes the financial
condition and results of activities of the University System of New Hampshire
(USNH) for the fiscal years ended June 30,2019 and 2018, This analysis provides
a comparison of significant amounts and measures to prior periods and, where
appropriate, presents management's outlook for the future.

USNH is a Section 50)(c){3) corporation organized under the laws of the State of

New Hampshire to sen,^ the people of the state as the key provider of public higher
education for bachelor's and advanced degree students. USNH accomplishes its
mission by operating four educational institutions that collectively offer a broad
array of education, research and public services for the state. These institutions

include the University of New Hampshire (UNH), Plymouth State University (PSU),
Keene State College (KSC) and Granite State College (GSC). While select programs
are active in other regions as well as abroad, most of USNH's activities take place at
the three residential campuses (UNH Durham or UNHD, PSU and KSO. UNH-Manches-

ter and UNH School of Law (UNHM and UNHL), the UNH Cooperative Extension
and Small Business Development Centers located throughout the state and the
six regional sites of GSC. The accompanying financial statements also include the

activities and balances of the University of New Hampshire Foundation. Inc. (UNHF)
and the Keene Endowment Association (KEA), two legally separate but affiliated

entities. (See Note 1 to the Financial Statements for additional information on

affiliated entities.)

II. Economic Outlook
As of June 2018, the US Census Bureau projected that through 2030 the number of
New Hampshire residents between ages 15 and 19 will drop 63% (approximately

5,400 students) from the then<urrent level of 85,131 .The dip would then be partially
recovered over the following ten years to approximately 83,300 by 2040. This is one
near-term trend impacting enrollment at USNH campuses. However, it is mitigated
by other trends including increased demand for fifth year programs culminating in
graduate degrees, as well as local industry needs for higher education levels of new
hires. At 2.5% as of June 2019, New Hampshire has the fourth lowest unemployment
rate in the country behind only Iowa, North Dakota and Vermont. This compares to
the national average of 3.7% and is welcome news for our graduates as they transition
into the state's workforce. Over the past few years USNH institutions have increased
partnerships with the State and businesses to offer and expand programs in areas of
expected economic growth including nursing and other health-related programs, as
well as robotics and other new technologies. In short, our campuses continue to focus
on meeting both local and regional demands for quality education. The remainder

of this report describes the results of financial operations for the year ended June 30,

2019 with comparisons to prior years.

III. Financial Highlights
A. Revenues

Chart I to the right shows USNH's operating revenue streams including state

appropriations, which totaled approximately S1 billion in both fiscal years 2019 and
2018. Given our tri-fold mission of instruction, research and public service, the vast

majority of USNH revenues are generated by the provision of educational and
auxiliary services. As shown in Chart 2, institutional financial aid expenditures

continue to surpass aid provided by grants and student loans issued.

Chart 1:2019 Gross Revenues by Source
Total = $1-1-Billion
($ in millions)

Nonresident tuition
$307 (29%)

Sales of
auxiliary
services

$214(20%)

Resident tuition,
continuing

education and

state general
appropriations

revenue

$267 (25%)

Operating
investment

income and
other

revenues

$41 (4%)

Grants and

contracts

$155(15%)

Noncapital gifts
and endowment
distributions
$47 (4%)

Student fees
$29 (3%)

USNH has provided over S1.5 billion in direct financial aid to students over the past
ten years. Approximately S331 million (22%) of this total was from grants and

contracts. Over $ I billion (71%) came from campus general funds, and the remaining
7% ($105 million) was provided by gifts and athletics programs. USNH continues to

focus on this area with the goal of limiting student and family loan debt for
our graduates.

Chart 2: Student Aid Trends
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As seen in Table I below, enrollment at the flagship campus has remained stable
over the past five years at an average of over I S.500 FTE students for all UNH locations
combined. UNH's Durham campus had large increases in freshmen applications over

the past four years as shown in Table 2. Their enrollment strategy remains focused on
artraait^ exemplary students. Approximately 40% of new UNHO students in the fall
of 2018 ranked in the top 20% of their high school class refleaing the continued quality

of the population. UNH's new presiderit also published four strategic principles to
drive UNH to become one of the top 25 public universities in the US. These include
enhancing student success and well-being, expanding excellence, embracing New
Hampshire, and building financial strength.

Under the leadership of their new president, KSC began grouping its academic

programs into two new schools during 2019. This is expected to result in
administrative efficiencies and sharing of resources. Their School of Arts, Education
and Culture now houses education, journalism, communications, philosophy,
Holocaust studies and several other majors. In addition, the School of Sciences,

Sustainability and Health includes architecture, chemistry, political science,
nursing, human performance, and environmental studies as well as technology
and other related programs.

Table 1: Full-Tlme Equivalent Credit Enrollment
For the Fall ofEach Fiscal Year

For 2019 the residential campuses limited tuition increases for NH students to 2.5%,

and GSC limited their NH-resident increases to 2.3%. Nonresident tuition revenues

increased 2.6% ($7.7 million) over the prior year. For the past two years approximately

51% of USNH students were NH residents when calculated on a full-time equivalency

basis. New England has historically been known as a premier location for the pursuit
of higher education, whether at a public or private institution. While that is still true,
regional school age populations are expected to decrease over time, resulting in
more competition for the smaller number of NH students.

USNH is working to ensure New Hampshire students are prepared to meet the needs
of the State's workforce. While financial aid from grants have remained stagnant for
the past several years, institutional financial aid grew 6.1% (S9.4 million) in 2019 after
a 10% (S13.8 million) increase in 2018. USNH has also made significant changes in

the way it awards financial aid. During 2018, UNH launched the Granite Guarantee ,
program which covers the cost of tuition for all federal Pell-grant eligible New

Hampshire students. The sister USNH residential campuses were quick to follow
suit. This program is funded with restricted gifts as well as unrestricted sources. The
State Is also partnering in this area by renewing its Governor's Scholarship Fund
for NH resident students. A review of New Hampshire's school populatkxi data by

age grouping suggests that our enrollment challenges will increase in future years.
Planning for this possibility includes more programs for adult-learners currently in
place at all campuses, and future capital project plans now include consideration of
these impaas as well.

2015
.

2016 2017 2018 2019'

UNH {all campuses) ■ 15.406 15,657 15,473 15,669 15,629

PSU 4,346 ;■ 4,674 4,641 4,694 '4,772

KSC . 4:751 4,250 4,160 ■ 3,758 3,487

GSC 1,685 1,658 1,584 1,446 . '1,468

Total USNH PTEs • 26,188 26,239 25;858 ' • 25,567 25,356

NH Resident 14,308 13,742 13,240 12,940 12342

Nonresident -.11,880 "12,497 12,618 12,627 i!2,514

Total USNH PTEs 26188 26,239 25,858"- '25,567 , 25,356

Table 2: Freshman Applications, Acceptances
\ and Enrollees at UNH Durham*

For the Fall ofEach Fiscal Year

ibi's" • 2016 ,2017 2018 2019

Freshmen

applications received 18,'420 19,255 20,203' -  19,966 20,096

Acceptances as %
of applications .  .80%. ■  71% 76% 77% 77%

Enrolled as % of

acceptances 18% 24% 19% 20% ■  '20%'

' Comparable data for other campuses is available upon request.
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Chart 3 below shows USNH's major revenue stream trends for the past ten years. As seen in the graph, state appropriation revenues were cut by 50% in 2012, which resulted in

a significant increase in resident tuition rates for fiscal years 2012 and 2013. U5NH then held resident tuition rates fiat through 201S as the appropriation was partially restored.
Inflationary increases in the resident tuition rates were added for 2016 through 2019. As evidenced by the financial aid growth shown in Chart 2, USNH is commined to working
with the State to ensure that New Hampshire's students have access to a quality educatbn at an affordable price.

Chart 3:Ten Year Revenue History
Before Application of Student FinancialAid

(Sin millions)
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State of New Hampshire general appropriations

B. Operating and Capital Expenditures
USNH's operating expenses (including interest) decreased $3.4 million or 0.4% over the 2018 level; and 2018 expenses increased only 1.5% over 2017. There have been

significant efforts to organize USNH employee groups over the past few years. USNH now has agreements in place for twelve groups representing 1,378 individuals or
approximately 23% of the nonstudent employee population, Nongrant employee compensation costs increased slightly (5759,000 or 0.2%) for the year. Depreciation

charges for buildings and equipment increased by Si 60,000 or 0.2%. USNH recorded 593,000 of amortization expense related to the adoption ofGASB 83. Certain Asset

Retirement Obligations, in 2019. This is offset by nongrant supplies and services and utility cost decreases of nearly 52 million from the 2018 level.

USNH recently restructured its purchasing activities to have all campus Procurement personnel report centrally. This model of local delivery with central oversight is

designed to contain costs by combining our purchasing volumes across the state. As part of this initiative USNH contracted for a system-wide online purchasing system

during 2018. This new system is expected to be live in calendar year 2019 and is designed to streamline business processes and provide tools needed for data driven

procurement decision making.
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Chart 4: Expenses by Functional Classification
($ in millions)
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$100 $150 $200
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Chart 4 displays USNH's operating expenses for the past three years by functional,
rather than natural, classification, The increases in financial aid discussed above are

clearly depicted in the graph. That is the only cost category with such significant

growth. (Additional detail on operating expenses by function can be found in

Note 13 to the Financial Statements.)

The campuses had several major capital projects underway during 2019. The Geneva
Smith Residence Hall (S8 million) at PSU was completed in 2019.The Health and

Human Performance Center (S10 million) at PSU, KSC's Mason Library expansion for

Holocaust study materials funded primarily with gift proceeds ($5 million), and the new
water treatment plant that UNH will share with the town of Durham (S20 million) are all

expected to be completed in fiscal year 2020.

From 2002 to 2013, USNH received significant state capital appropriations to renovate
specific academic buildings on each campus. During the past ten years (grating arxl
internal funds totaling S211 million were used to supplement the state appropriations.
However, there are still several buildings in need of improvement at each campus. This

work is needed to ensure USNH can meet the education and experiential needs of its

students. Because state capital funding has been significantly reduced over the past

several years, USNH campuses must strategically prioritize the available limited funding
for capital assets, while at the same time not allowing deferred maintenance needs

to escalate. In addition, USNH is only authorized to issue debt for self-supportir>g,
auxiliary projects. The related debt service is then funded by student fees for each type

of auxiliary sen/kre (housing, dining or recreation).

Chart S below shows the funding sources for USNH's capital spending over the past
fifteen years. USNH spent over S1 billion during this time to construct and renovate

buildings and infrastructure at all campuses. One of the largest sources of funding
for the related projects was debt issuances of S427 million. Plant and equipment

depreciation expenses of S763 million were recorded during the same period.
(See Notes 5 and 8 to the Financial Statements for additional information on

property and equipment, and debt balances.)

Chart 5: Capital Funding Sources, 2005-2019
Total $1.6 Billion
($ in millions)

Gifts and grants
S85 (5%)

New debt
$427 (27%)

Auxiliary funds
$226(14%)

State capital
appropriations

$193(12%)

Education and
?eneral funds
447 (28%)

'—Internal borrowings
$211 (14%)
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C. Investing Activities
Cash and shon-term investment balances totaled approximately S224 million

on June 30,2019, This compares to $206 million on June 30,2018. (See Note 2 to

the Financial Statements for additional information on cash, cash equivalents and
short-term investments.) USNH's long-term investments are primarily derived from
endowment gifts intended to be invested in perpetuity. With Board approval USNH
also invests select large, current-use gifts, and unrestricted balances held centrally,

as quasi-endowment funds. These amounts are Invested in one of three venues
depending on whether the donor contributed to a campus, the UNH Foundation
(UNHF), or the Keene Endowment Association (KEA). The investment pools are

managed to provide the highest rate of return over the long term given an
acceptable level of risk as determined by the responsible fiduciaries. The USNH
Consolidated Endowment Pool holds funds for the benefit of all campuses. The
UNHF endowment pool holds funds for the benefit of UNH only, and the KEA pool
holds funds for the benefit of KSC only. The USNH Board ofTrustees has fiduciary

responsibility for the USNH Pool, whereas the separate boards of UNHF and KEA

have their own investment policies and are responsible for those investments.
Below is a summary of USNH's endowment and similar investment values for the
past three years.

Table 3: Endowment and Similar Investments

Market Value Summary
(Sin millions)

As of June 30,

'2019 2018 2017

USNH Pool S542 $527 ■S498 ■

UNHF Pool 236 225 204

KEA Pool 10 9 ■ : 8

Funds held in trust 16 - ■ 16 16'

Life Income/Annuity Funds 5 _4 4

$809 S73I ■ ■ ■

While the two larger pools are primarily invested in funds, the KEA pool primarily
holds individual stock and bond investments. As shown in Table 4 above, the KEA
pool net gains over the past three years averaged 11.6% and the USNH and UNHF
pools averaged 9.0% and 8.8%, respectively, before distributions. During fiscal year
2019, the Investment Comminee of the USNH Board ofTrustees voted to change
the target asset allocations for investments in the USNH Endowment pool. The
changes included increasing the targets for public and private global equities, while
also reducing the targeted level of flexible capital investments. These changes will
be incorporated, over several years to ensure prior fund commitments are met.

Distributions from the endowment and trust funds totaled approximately S34
• million in fiscal year 2019. This compares to $28 million for fiscal year 2018. The
difference is primarily due to USNH beginning to payout on a quasi-endowment
created several years ago to support debt service payments made by the campuses.
Distributions of approximately $22 million were made from the USNH pool and
trusts, along with $11 million from the UNHF pool and $401,000 from the KEA pool.
Distributions represent a smaller percentage of the USNH pool because USNH holds

several quasi-endowment funds for future, rather than current, use. Volatility in
returns has resulted in a limited number of endowment funds having market values
less than the original gift value Cunderwater'funds). Recent gains have mitigated
this in most cases. Of the 1,504 true endowment funds maintained in the various
endowment pools, only 31 remained underwater at June 30,2019. This compares to
42 underwater true endowment funds at June 30,2018.The true endowment balances
underwater at June 30,2019 totaled S710,000, compared to $440,000 at June 30,2018.
Certain quasi-endowment funds were also underwater in both years as well. (See
Notes 4 and 12 for further information on endowment and similar investments.)

Table 4: Pooled Endowment Returns
Year- Ended June 30, Three Year

2019 2018 2017 Average

USNH Pool

Gross return 6.3% ■ 8.4% 13.4%. 9.4%

Investment management fees -  (05%) (0.4%) (0.4%) (0.4%)

Net return 5.8% : ■  8.0% 13.0% 9.0%

Distributions (4.1%)- ■ ■  a^) (35%)-■ ■  (3.6%)

Net reinvested 1.7% 4.8% r - 95% 5.4%

UNHF Pool 1 '

Gross return 5.6% 8.6% 14.1% 9.4%'

Investment management fees (PiW (0.7%) ■  (0.6%) (0.6%)

Net return 5.0% •: 7.9% 13.5%, . 8.8%

Distributions ,(3.8%) (5-3%) (5.7%) (4.9%)

Net reinvested 12% 2.m 7m> 3.9%

KEA Pool

Gross return 10.9% ■ 14.7% 11.3% 123%

Investment management fees (0.7%) (02%) "■(0.7%) (0.7%)

Net return 10.2% 14.0% ■  10.6% 11.6%

Distributions (4.5%) . (3,7%) (5.7%) (4.6%)

Net reinvest^ 5.-7%"' ■  10.3% 4.9% 7.0%

IV. Using the Financial Statements

A. Statements of Net Position
The Statements of Net Position on the following two pages depict all USNH assets,
liabilities, and deferred inflows/outflows of resources on June 30ih each year, along
with the resulting net financial position. An increase in net position over time is a
primary indicator of an institution's financial health. Fanors contributir^ to future
financial health as repoaed on the Statements of Net Position include the value and
liquidity of financial and capital investments, and balances of related obligations.
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Table 5 below shows condensed Information from the Statements of Net Position at June 30 for the past five yea5. Note that we have also Included certain condensed

information as of June 30,2019 by campus herein as required by regional accreditation agencies.

Table 5: Condensed Information from the Statements of Net Position as of June 30,
($ in millions)

■  ■ : 2015 '2016 2017. . 2018* 2019"

Cash and short-term investments ' • ' - S 237 --.T S 228 '  5 213 .5 206 $:-224

Endowment and similar investments 679,^ . • 655 730 781 •809 . •

Property and equipment, net • • •.• 1,010' 1,077 l;i-20-' ■  1,122 1,117

Other assets and deferred outflows of resources ■  168 ^  '162 :• 106 95 : 92

Total Assets and .  * * *
.. '

Deferred Outflows of Resources • 2,094 , 2,122 ■■ 2,169 2,204 ■  2,242 ,

Derivative instruments - interest rate swaps '  30 37 ■  :26"' .. 18 23 ^

Postretirement medical benefits 54 . '56 L. • "56 • 90 . 83

Longner/ti debt ^500- " 519- •  :. 501 ' 488 • •. :465 ".

Other liabilities and deferred inflows of resources -  1^-' • 169 .  152 .  • 160 . 173'

' Total Liabilities and •

Deferred Inflows of Resources ' ' 744 781 735 - 756 744

Net investment in capital assets ,598-- ■ .  630 651 665 '685

Restricted financial resources ." . 413 405 ■  454;. : 481 495

Unrestricted financial resources .  " 339 306 329 ' 302 318

Total Net Position 51,350 .. .
.

51,341 .  - . 51,434 ■ 51,448 ■ 51,498 ; -

'Beginning net position restated to reflect the adoption ofGASB 75 related to post retirement medical obligations
"Beginning net position restated to reflect the adoption of GASB 83 related to asset retirement obligations

As shown above, cash and short-term investment balances have been relatively
stable over the past five years. In 2017 endowment returns rebounded after net
losses in the prior two years. The 2018 and 2019 endowment gifts and gains were

more moderate, but increased the restricted net position, as well as the investment

asset balances.The other assets balances above include investments of 569 million,

557 million, S1 1 million and 54 million, held by our bond trustee related to our

Series 2015 and 2016 bond issuances for 2015 through 2018, respectively. As of

June 30,2019, USNH no longer had any debt proceeds held by bond trustees.
In 2017, USNH also transferred assets related to our Operating Staff Retirement

Program into a trust, and applied the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68,

Accounting and Financial Reporting for f^nsions. The actuarial reviews completed
for the plan for 2017 and 2018 resulted in the recording of a net pension asset of

approximately 51 million. Accordingly, no related pension liabilities are recorded for
the plan beginning in 2017.The net pension assets were significantly reduced in
2019. A balance of approximately 5779,000 remains in other assets for this program

as of June 30,2019.

Deferred inflows and outflows of resources include changes in the fair value of

USNH's interest rate swap derivatives, as well as accounting gains and losses

related to refinancing certain bonds outstanding. The impacts of changes in
actuarial assumptions, differences between projected and actual earnings, and

benefit payments made after the measurement dates of USNH benefit plans are
also included in deferred inflows and outflows beginning in 2017 depending on

the type of plan, Beginning in 2019, additional deferred inflows and outflows were

recorded related to asset retirement obligations.

The reduction in other assets and deferred outflows of resources in 2018 Is due to

a 57 million reduction in the fair value of interest rate swap obligations, offset by an

increase in accounting losses on debt refinancing and posiretirement medical
plan benefit payments which were made after the actuarial review measurement

date in 2018. In 2018, USNH adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting forPosiemploymeni BeneHts Other than Pensions,

for our postretirement medical obligations. The actuarial review completed for the

Postretirement Medical Plan at that time resulted in recording deferred Inflows
and outflows in both fiscal year 2018 and 2019. Additional postretirement medical

changes were recorded in 2019.

In 2018, the UNH Foundation also adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No.

S], Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements, v/h\ch resulted in recording deferred inflows
of approximately 51 million and 52 million in 2017 and 2018, respectively.

USNH has large liabilities related to long-term debt and postretirement medical

benefits. Bond and capital lease principal payments ranged from 516 million to

521 million for fiscal years 2017 through 2019. The postretirement obligations

represent the actuarially-determined value of medical benefits provided to certain
current and former employees for various periods, including the remaining life of

the participants in some cases. {See Notes 7 and 8 to the Financial Statements for

additional Information in this regard.)
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Net position Is reported in three categorieiThe net invested in capital assets amount represents the historical cost of property and equipment reduced by total accumulated
depreciation and the balance of related debt outstanding for certain auxiliary buildings. Restricted financial resources include balances of current and prior year gifts for
specified purposes such as scholarships or academic programs, as well as campus endowment balances which were required to be invested in perpetuity by the original
donors (S282 million and S264 million at June 30.2019 and 2018, respectively). Unrestricted financial resources represent net assets that are available for any future use
without legal restriction, (See Note 14 to the Financial Statements for further details on the components of net position.) A breakdown of asset, liability and net position
balances by campus as of June 30,2019 is shown below.

Table 5A: Condensed Information from the Statement of Net Position as of June 30,2019
Presented by Campus
(Sinmilltons)

University of Keene State '  ■ ■ Total

New Hampshire Plymouth G>lle9e& Granite University

CampusesSi . State •  Endowment State ChanceOor^s System of New

.  Foundation University • - Association College Office Hampshire

Cash and short-term investments S -259 S 36 S 55 ■ 522 ${I48) S 224

Endowment and similar investments • 409 ■ 29 .  :■ '39 8 324 809

Properly and equipment, net 744 • 191 •  174." 7 1 1,117

Other assets and deferred outflows of resources .  (24) (10)- 3 (1) 124 92

Total Assets and

Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,388- 246 ■ ' 271 _36 ■  : 301 2,242

Derivative instruments - iriterest rate swaps , - - - - 23 ■ 23

Postretirement medical benefits 64 n :, - 11- 2 (5) 83

Long-term debt 185 - ■ 99 ,  ■ '.98 . - .■ 83 465

Other liabilities and deferred inflows of resources ■  88 14 ■  ■ 13 -56 173

Total Liabilities and

Deferred Inflows of Resources 337 ■ 124 , • _;}22 4 157 744

Net investment in capital assets -  . 491 79' 7A 5 ■36 685

Restricted financial resources • 417 27 43 8 495

Unrestricted financial resources 143 16 ■ ■ • -.32 19 108 318

Total Net Position $1,051- ■ . ■  S122 $149 S32 -  ■ $144 $1,498

B. Statements of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position
Operating revenues are generally earned through the sale of goods and services.
However, GAS6 reporting standards require that certain USNH recurring revenues
be shown as nonoperating. This includes state general appropriations, federal
Pell grants, noncapital gifts, operating investment income, and the portion of
endowment returns used to fund the related programs,These revenue streams
are important sources of funds used to supplement tuition and fees revenue.
Accordingly, we have grouped the operating and nonoperating revenues together
in the condensed statements to allow readers to better understand which revenues
support USNH operating expense streams. Table 6 on the following page shows
condensed information from the Statements of Revenues. Expenses and Changes
in Net Position for the five years ended June 30.2019,

The net tuition and fees revenue values in these statements refleas the size and type
of student enrollments, as well as student financial needs and academic achievement.
Auxiliary services reflect revenues from student housing, dining, and other facility
programs. Grants and contracts revenues reflect amounts reimbursed by USNH
sponsors including the US government, state of New Hampshire, and other entities.
These revenues may also come from awards to other institutions that are later
contraaed out to USNH ampuses. Total operating and nonoperating revenues were
up $ 14 million in 2019. primarily due to irtcreases in operating investment income and
endowment payouL Expenses were down S 3 million in 2019, after an inaease of S12
million in 2018. The increase in net position before other changes reflects USNhfs
operating margin each year. USNKs operating margin for 2019 was 2.7% of net
revenues. This is primarily due to the higher investment income levels noted above.
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Table 6: Condensed Information from the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
for the Years Ended June 30,
(Sin millions)

^ 2015 2016 .■ 2017 • 2018 2019. •

tuition and fees ;. S472 '' $491 ssov $514 $522 ^
Less: student financial aid .(149)- " im ■  (172)" (188) ■ ■(197). ■

Net tuition and fees i  -323' - 329 329 326 ! 325 •
Sales of auxiliary services . . ■■■ ' 206" 211 215 ■ ■ '  ' 214
Grants and contracts • ;• 149 ■  149 ;  , 'l46;_ ; • 153 155 1
State general appropriations . ■ ' 81 .■ " ■ 81 '81 ; ■  ■ 81 :• ST.: ' ■
Noncapital gifts, investment income and other revenues :  66 • 79 71 / 74 ■  -83

Total Operating and Nonoperating Revenues .  . ■ 849 843 849 "■ 863
Employee compensation 503 529 /  : 521, ■ 533 534 ,
Supplies and services :203; . 203 210 208 ■■ " :204.'
Utilities, depreciation and interest 99 ■ . 100 102

Total Operating and Nonoperating Expenses 804 , 831 '■ ' ' 843 .• . . 840

Increase in Net Position from Recurring Activities 21 ! 18 'M ■ 6  • 23

Endowment gifts and returns, net i; ■ ■ 6- (30) ■; 70 45 :■ .: 27.
State capital appropriations and other changes \ __5- ■ ' 3 11 5 -  . M.

Total Other Changes in Net Position 11 . Ml iM' 50 .29

Effect of adoption of new accounting standards ^ - ■  '__Z' " (42) ■ M) ■
Total Increase (Decrease) in Net Position -• •$ -32- 5 (9) S 93 $  14 ±50-

•  .

Endowment gifts totaled S18 million in 2019, S16 million in 20l8,and $13 million in 2017, Most of these gifts were due to UNH's recent capital campaign which ended in 2018.
The investment return after distributions totaled only $8.9 million in 2019 after gains of $29 million in 2018 and $56 million in 2017,7he volatility of endowment returns is a
significant driver of the change in total net position each year. Table 6A below provides condensed information from the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position presented by campus for the year ended June 30.2019.

Table 6A; Condensed Information from the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes In Net Position
for the Year Ended June 30,2019
Presented by Campus
(Sin millions)

'Univei^of Keene State, • Total
NewHanpshtre •Plymouth College& ■ '  Granite University

Campu$es& . . State Endowment ^ . State OtwKeOor^ System of New
: < Foitftdatioh University - Association CoOege Office Hampshire

Tuition and fees ■  -$370 5 75 "  "562 . . , 515 ,S - . . $522
Less: student financial aid ,  ■■ M) ' ■ - J5) (197)

Net tuition and fees .232 ' 45 38 •' ' ' 1.0 . - ,325

Sales and auxiliary services ■  149 32 •  ■ 33 - 214

Grants and'contracts 132 9 8  ,. 6 .  - . 155

State general appropriations 55 12 11 3 81

Noncapital gifts, investment income and other revenues -. - ■ 6 !_ 88

Total Operating and Nonoperating Revenues : 627' • 104 ■-■_96 JO ; ■ _16 863

Employee compensation. 386 60 '  ' ' 57- 13 • IS- ,- 534

Supplies and services 154 26 25 ■ '■ 4 (5) ■ 204

Utilities, depreciation and interest
'

19 '  JZ ■ ' [ _2 - 102

Total Operating and Nonoperating Expenses 603 - 105 _99 js J5 • _840
Change in Net Position from Recurring Activities " _24 " ■  -0) ' ■ _(3) ■ _2 23

Endowment gifts and returns, net 17 2 2  ; - ■ 6 27

State capital appropriations and other changes* 4, (1) •; 1 -

■
;  z

Total Other Changes in Net Position 21 ]_ ; - •  _2 27

Total Increase in Net Position $ 45 5  - $ - ■ 5_2 $3 $ 50

'Reflects adjustments related to adoption of new accounting standards.
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C. Statements of Cash Flows

The Statements of Cash Flows summarize transactions affecting cash and cash equivalents. Table 7 below shows summary information from the

Statements of Cash Flows for the five years ended June 30,2019.

Table 7: Condensed Information from the Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended June 30,
fS in millions)

'-■2015 201,6 . 2017 2018 2019

Cash flows from:
Receipts from tuition and f^s, net $324 1 $331 $ 332.'- ■ $328 $327
Receipts from sales of auxiliary services 206 ■ 208 " 217 ■ 214 216
Receipt of state general appropriations •  • 81 81 81 81 81

■  Noncapital gifts, grants and other receipts 190 193 1.88. 203 198
Payments to and on behalf of employees (499) ; • •  (518) (543)-.: (537) •  (532)
Payments for supplies, sen/ices and utilities (224),. • ■  (222) :(227)- - (227) -  • (222)

Net Cash Provided by Operating and
Noncapital Financing Activities •  78 73 48 .  62 68 ■

Net Cash Used in Capital Financing Activities (5) • (110) .(120);.: • (83) .(78)
Net Cash (Used in)/Provided by Investing Activities (73) . 26 69.. 10 30

lncrease/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents S  - S(l l) $  (3) $(11) S_2Q

These statements provide information about cash collections and cash payments made by USNH each year, The statements are designed to help readers assess our
ability to generate the cash flows necessary to meet current and future obligations. Cash flows from operating activities will always be different than the operating results
on the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position because of the inclusion of noncash items, such as depreciation expense, and because the latter
statement is prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, meaning that it shows revenues when earned and expenses as incurred. The increase in cash flows from operating
and noncapital financing activities is primarily related to the increase in grant revenues during 2018 and 2019. The net cash used in capital financing activities for 2018
and 2019 is lower since most of the 2016 and 2017 investments generated by USNH's recent bond issuances had already been liquidated in prior years. The cash provided
by investing activities in 2019 is higher because endowment investment transactions were less volatile than 2018.

D. Financial Indicators
USNH's primary indicator of its financial health is the level of unrestricted financial resources to external debt outstanding, This ratio uses the unrestricted net position
balance as the numerator and the total long-term debt balance outstanding as the denominator, USNH's targeted unrestricted financial resources to debt ratio is 50%
or above. The average of this ratio over the past five years was 64% reflecting sufficient available support of ongoing initiatives. (See Notes 8 and 14 to the Financial
Statements for additional information in this regard).

Chart 6: Unrestricted Financial Resources to Total Debt

67.7%
65.6%

68.5%

61 9%58 9%

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
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University System of New Hampshire
Statements of Net Position

($ in thousands)

•  • ' Balance at June 30,

2019 . ' 2018 ;

ASSETS ■ '  *:■ •• ' '
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents ' •;• 'S 75,422 . • ■  : $ 55,128
Short-term investments 151,150
Accounts receivable, net ••22,031 '. -  20,628
Pledges receivable - current portion ;  : : 3,292 , 3,299
Notes.receivabte-current portion . ... ' .  -.2,196 , ■ ■  . . 2,711 .
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ! "  ■ 9,230 ■ : -■ :  "7390" "

Total Current Assets ''260,337 240,506
Noncurrent Assets

Debt proceeds held by bond trustee for construction purposes 4,239
Endowment and similar investments - campuses • .55>,9^";. J 543,355

• Endowment and similar investments - affiliated entities 251,249 . •: 237,917
Pledges receivable, net of current portion ;  .4,810 • ' 5,501
Notes receivable, net of current portion .-. •14,293, " .  18,070.
Pension assets, net of obligations • ' • • " '■ : -sri :■ 724" ,

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation 1,117,361 1,122,011
- Total Noncurrent Assets • ■ . -• 1,946,008 ;• : 1,931,827

TOTAL ASSETS {  2,206,345. 2,172,333

1  . '
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 35,977 j 31,436

LIABILmES

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and.accrued expetHses ,  . " 65;23r 59,924

.Deposits and unearned revenues • ' 40,242 - . 39,864

Accrued employee benefits - current portion ■  ■ .6,760 - - ■ 5,917

PostretirerVient medical benefits - current portion ■  5,331. -. 5,837 .
Long-term debt-current portion ■  • ." 26,203 • 22,968

Total Current Liabilities • 143,767 "■ - 135,510

Noncurrent Liabilities

Asset retirement and other obligations. .  '5,787.. •' 2,000

Refundable government advances " - i ; ■ ' 17,513- ■ 16,679
Accrued employee berTefits.net of current portion - ;  " 24,702 25,736
Postretiremeht-medical benefits, net of current portion : 77,515 r ;  83,975
Derivative instruments - interest rate swaps t • ..22,976 • 18,294
Long-term debt, net of current portion 439,016 ■ ; ■  465,219

Total Noncurrent.Liabilities ■  ■ ■ 587,509 . ■ 611,903

TOTAL UABILITIES •731,276' . 747,413

}  • ••■
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES .12,500 8,700

NETPOSmONfseeNoteH)

Net investment in capital assets 685,015 • ■ 665,194

Restriaed

•Nonexpendable - :  . 281,701 . • 263,969
Experrdable ■ ■213,337.: • 216,339

Unrestricted • ■  318493■ 302,154

TOTAL NET POSmON' $1,498,546 $1,447,656

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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University System of New Hampshire
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
($ in thousands)

For the year ended June 30,

2019 ■  2018

OPERATING REVENUES
.

,

Resident tuition S " 166,236 S  165,325

Nonresident tuition ■ 307332 299,663

Continuing education tuition • 19374 20,749

Student fees revenue .28,514 : 28,072

Total tuition and fees 521,656 . ■  513,809

Less: student financial aid - grants and contracts "■ (33,460) (33391)
Less: student financial aid - all other ■  . (163,308) (153,890)

Net tuition and fees .  324388. 326,328

Grants atxi contracts - direct revenues .  107,258 105,735

Grants and contracts - facilities & administrative recovery ■  21,718 21,160

Sales of auxiliary services 214311 0 214,784
Other operating revenues 32,266. • 29,677

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 700,641 •• 697,684

OPERATING EXPENSES

Employee compensation • grams and contraas 62,965 61,714

Employee compensation - all other . 471,763' 471,004

Supplies and services • grants and contracts 30,010- 32,416

Supplies and services • all other •  174,369 175383

Utilities . 18383 , 19,065

Depreciation and amortization 65349 65,096

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 823,039 825,178

Operating loss (122,398) (127,494)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

State of New Hampshire general appropriations 81300 81,000

Federal Pell grants 25,968 26,408

Noncapital gifts ■ .13310 14,101

Endowment and investment income 42,024, 29367

Interest expense, net ■  (17,154) (18,440)

Other nonoperaiing revenue :  ' 252 349

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 145.600 133,085

INCREASE IN NET POSmON BEFORE OTHER CHANGES 23,202 • 5,591

OTHER CHANGES IN NET POSITION '

• j

State of New Hampshire capital appropriations 3,000

Plant gifts, grants and other changes, net 2,722- ■ 1,862

Endowment and similar gifts 17,793 16,494

Endowment return, net of amount used for operations 8595 28,985

TOTAL OTHER CHANGES IN NET POSITION 29,410 50,341

INCREASE IN NET POSITION .  52,612 55,932

Net Position at Beginning ofYear 1,447356 1,433,516

Effect of adoption of new accounting standards (1,722) I (41,792)
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $1,498,546 Sl/447,656

See accompanying notes to the hnancial statements.
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University System of New Hampshire
Statements of Cash Flows

fS in thousands)

For the year ended June 30,
•  2019 . 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING AQIVmES

• Receipts from tuition and fees, net of student financial aid
Receipts from sales of auxiliary services
Receipts from grants, contracts and other operating revenues •
Paymenc to employees
Payments for employee benefits ■ .. .
Payments for supplies, sen/ices and utilities

■  ■ '$327,183
•  216,302

•, 158,173 •

■  (39'l,8f5) .
'(140,449)

;■ _ (222,225) ■

S327332
214353
160,598

(404,062)
(133,283) '
(226378)

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACnVITiES .(52,831) (61,540)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVmES
State general appropriations • i:
Federal Pell and other nonoperating grants
Noncapital gifts

81,000
26,221

•  "13300 '

81,000
26,757

• 15399 :

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 120,521' 123,356

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State appropriations for plant projects '
Plant gifts and grants
Endowment gifts
Proceeds from issuance of debt and sale of property
Debt principal payments
Interest payments
Purchases and construction of property ' . \
Retirement of debt through defeasance ' «

.. - •:1,237-- ' "■
'• ; 4,774' •
'  18378

'■ 234 ^
(21,057) '•
(18,4r9) .

■  - (63,178)

1,762
6307

17002
109,736
(18,632)
(19,994)
(72,427)-

(106,572)

NET CASH USED IN CAPITAL FINANCING AaiVITIES (77,531). ■ (82,818)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales of investments
Purchases of investments
Investment income

481,725
(462,430)

i  10,840- .

718339
(717,912)

9,434

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING AaiVITIES . 30,135' 10,061

Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Beginnirtg cash and cash ̂ uivalents

$ 20,294
.  -55,128

S (10,941)
66,069

ENDING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $75,422 : $ 55,128

RECONCIUABON OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
USED IN OPERATING ACnvmES

Operating loss ,
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash us^ in operating activities:

•  Depreciation and amortization
Changes in assets and liaWlities:

Accounts receivable, net
Notes receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deposits and unearned revenues
Accru^ employee benefits

;

•$(1223^) ■

65349

-  ■ Ml)
•5,127
(1,640) ;•
6374

•  472-

(3,674)

5(127,494)

65,096

2.339
642
221

3,446
2,135

(7,925) .

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING AaiVITIES $(52331) 5(61,540)

SIGNIFICANT NONCASH TRANSACTIONS f : . ■ '
Endowmentreturn.netofamountusedforoperations S -8395

. Loss on disposal of capital assets • j (1,237)
Construction services payable balance -

5 28,985
(4,403)
10,373

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30.2019 and 2018

I.Summary of significant accounting policies and presentation
The University System of New Hampshire (USNH) is a not-for-profit institution of higher
education created in 1963 as a body politic and corporate under the laws of the State

of New Hampshire {the State) and is generally exempt from income taxes under
Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. USNH is considered a component unit

of the State for financial reporting purposes. The accompanying financial statements

include the accounts of the Univereity of New Hampshire (UNH). Plymouth State

University (PSU), Keene State College (KSQ, and Granite State College (GSQ as well
as certain afhliated entities discussed below. UNH, PSU, KSC and GSC are colleaively
referred to in the accompanying financial statements as'campuses.*

Affiliated entrties and related parties
Governmental accounting standards require that all potential component units be

evaluated for inclusion in the financial statements of the primary government of the
reporting entity, USNH's policy on'Foundations Established for the Benefit of USNH or

its Component Institutions'states that the USNH Board ofTrustees retains control over
the activities of any affiliated foundation. The USNH policy further states that USNH

has the legal authority to terminate the existence of any affiliated foundation, at which
time ownership of the related assets would revert to USNH.Two legally separate
affiliated foundations are impacted by this policy and, accordingly, are considered

blended component units of USNH. The University of New Hampshire Foundation,
Inc (UNHF) and the Keene Endowment Association (KEA) are collectively referred to in
the accompanying financial statements as'affiliated entlties.'The associated revenues,
expenses, assets, liabilities, deferred inflows, deferred outflows and net position of
UNHF and KEA are fully consolidated with those of the campuses in the accompanying

financial statements, and all associated inter-entity activity has been eliminated.

UNHF, Inc was incorporated in 1989 as a not-for-profit, tax-exempt organization.

Its purpose is to solicit, collea, invest and disburse funds for the sole benefit of the

University of New Flampshire, The University of New Hampshire funds a portion of
the operating expenses of UNHF. UNHF is governed by its own Board of Directors,

the membership of which includes the President of the University of New Hampshire

and up to three other members of the USNH Board ofTrustees. UNHF has a separate
financial statement audit each year. Cotxiensed financial information for UNHF is
included in Note 16. The KEA was organized in 1957 as a separate charitable entity to

provide financial assistarxe to deserving students at Keene State College. Income is

distributed at the discretion of the Trustees of KEA

Basis of account!r>g

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with US
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) using the economic resources measurement

focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

USNH follows the requirements of the'business-type activities'(BTA) model as

defined by GASB Statement No. 35, BasicRnancialStatements-andManagement's
Discussion andAnalysis for Public Colleges and Universities. BTAs are defined as those

that are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or

services. The Statement requires that resources be classified into the following net
position categories, as more fully detailed In Note 14:

Net investment in capital assets: Property and equipment at historical cost or fair

value on date of acquisition, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding
principal balances of debt attributable to the acquisition or construction of

those assets.

Restricted Nonexpendable: Resources subjea to externally imposed stipulations

that they be maintained permanently by USNH. These funds include the historical gift
value of restricted true endowment funds.

Restricted Expendable: Resources whose use by USNH is subject to externally

imposed stipulations. Such funds include the accumulated net gains on donor-
restricted'true'endowment funds; the fair value of restricted funds functioning as

endowment; restricted funds loaned to students; restricted gifts and endowment
income; and other similarly restricted funds.

Unrestricted: Resources that are not subjea to externally imposed stipulations

Substantially all unrestricted net position funds are designated to support academic
research, or auxiliary enterprises invested to funaion as endowment; or committed to

capital construaion prcijeas

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts

of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates
of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting periods. Aaual results could differ from these estimates. The most
significant areas that require management estimates relate to valuation of certain
investments and derivative instruments, useful life and related depreciation of capital

assets, and accruals for postretirement medical and other employee-related benefits

Investments are maintained with established financial institutions whose credit is

evaluated by management and the respective governing boards of USNH and its
affiliated entities. Investments of operating cash in money market and other mutual

funds are generally recorded as cash equivalents. These amounts are invested
for purposes of satisfying current operating liabilities and generating investment

income to suppon ongoing operations. Short-term investments represent highly

liquid amounts held for other current liabilities.

Property and equipment are recorded at original cost for purchased assets or at fair

value on the date of donation in the case of gifts. Equipment with a unit cost of S5,0(X3
or more is capitalized. Building improvements with a cost of S50,(X)0 or greater are

also capitalized. Net interest costs incurred during the construction period for major,

debt-funded, capital projeas are added to the cost of the underlying asset. The value
of equipment acquired under capital leases is recorded at the present value of the
minimum lease payments at the Inception of the lease. Depreciation of property and

equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the

respective assets. The cost of certain research buildings is componentized for the
purpose of calculating depreciation. Buildings and improvements are depreciated
over useful lives ranging from 4 to 50 years. Depreciable lives for equipment range

from 3 to 30 years. (See Note 5 for additional information on depreciation.) USNH does

not record donated woi1(s of art and historical treasures that are held for exhibition,

education, research and public service.

Library collections are recorded as an expense in the period purchased, with the

exception of UNH School of Law library colleaions which are capitalized annually

arxJ depreciated over a ten-year period on a straight-line basis.

Deposits and unearned revenue consist of amounts billed or received in advance
of USNH providing goods or services. Advances from the U5. Government for

Federal Perkins Loans to students are reported as government advances refundable.

Federal Direct Loan proceeds are posted to student accounts as approved and
drawn weekly.

Operating revenues Include tuition and fees, grants and contracts, sales of auxiliary

senrices, arxJ other operating revenues. Tuition and fee revenues are reported net of
student financial aid discounts and allowances. Operating expenses include
employee compensation and benefits, supplies and services, utilities, and

depreciation. Operating expenses also include early
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retirement and other separation incentive stipends and benefits promised to certain

employees in exchange for termination of employment. All such termination benefits

are accrued as of the date the termination agreements are signed and are presented at
net present value at year end Nonoperating revenues (expenses) Include all other

revenues and expenses except certain changes in long-term plant, endowment and
other net position funds, which are reported as other changes in net position. Operat

ing revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when incurred.

Restriaed grant revenue is recognized only to the extent ofapplicable expenses incurred
or, in the case of fixed-price contracts, when the contract terms are met or completed.

Unconditional pledges of nonendowment gifts are presented net of estimated amounts

deemed uncdleaible after discounting to the present value of expected future cash flows.

Because of urxertainties regarding their realization arxi valuation, bequest intentions and
other conditional promises are not recognized as assets until the specified conditions

are met In accordance with GASB requirements, endowment pledges expeaed to be

received over the next ten years, totalir^g S11,094^)00 and $8,166,(XXI at June 30.2019 arxl

2018, respeaively, have not been reported in the accompanying finarxial statements
USNH generally uses restriaed funds first when an expense Is incurred where both

restricted arxl unrestriaed funds are available.

Endowment return used for operations per application of the Board-approved
endowment spending policy is reported as nonoperating revenue. Net realized arxJ

unrealized gains/losses and interest/dtviderxf income earned on endowment and similar

investments together with the excess (deficiency) ofthese earnings over the return used
fa operations are reported as other changes in net position.

The System's financial statements include comparative financial information. Certain prior
year amounts have been reciassified to conform to the current year presentation.

New reporting standards
The System's financial statements and notes for fiscal 2019 as presented herein reflea the
adoption ofGASB Statement No. 83. Certain AssetRetiremeni Obligations, as ofJuly 1,2018.

GASB 83 establishes guidance fa determining the timing arxi pattern of recognition for

liabilities and caresponding deferred outflows of resources related to asset retirement

obligations.The Statement requires the measurement of an asset retirement obligation to

be based on the best estimate of the current value of outlays expeaed to be incurred.The
deferred outflows of resources associated with an asset retirement obligation will be

measured at the amount of the corresponding liability upon initial measurement and
generally recognized as an expense during the reporting periods that the asset provides

service. As allowed under the standard, fiscal year 2018 balances arxi aaivities were

fX)t restated to reflect this adoption. USNH's asset retirement obligations are governed

by New Hampshire ajles for the control of radiation, disposal of hazardous waste, arxi

underground oil storage. The related activities include disposal of radioactive materials
in research laboratories, equipment boused in campus health centers, landfill gas

pipelines and underground oil tanlcs. as well as closure activities required for campus
fuel co-generation and water treatment plants. As a result of this adoption, the opening
net position as of July 1,2018 was reduced by S1,722,000. USNH accrued $3,306,000 for
these obligations as of June 30,2019. The liability estimate is based on the current cost

of expected removal costs. The remaining useful lives of the related assets range from
1-41 years. USNH has no funding or assurance requirement related to asset retirement

beyond these decommissioning costs. Additional information can be fourxi in Note 10.

The System also adopted GASB Statement No.88 Certain Discbsures Related to Debt,
including Direct Borrowings and Direct Pbcements in 2019. This Statement improves

disclosures by providing distinction between direct borrowings and direct placements

of debt. It also clarifies which liabilities should be included when disclosing information

related to debt. See Note 8 for the related information,

2. Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments
Cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments are recadedat fairvalue. USNKs

investment policy and guidelines spedfy permitted instruments, durations, required ratings
and insurance ofUSNH cash, cash equivalents and shon-term investments The investment
policy and guidelirxs are intended to mitigate credit risk on investments individually atxl

in the aggregate through restriaionson investment type, liquidity, custodian, dollar level,

maturity, and rating category. Money market funds are placed with the largest national fund

managersThese funds must be rated AA/Aa by Standard & ffoc/sand Moody^ Investa
Service and comply with Securities arxi Exchange Commission Rule 2A-7, Repurchase

agreements must be fully collateraliffid at 102% ofthe face value by USTreasuries a 103%
of the face value by US Government-backed a guaranteed agencies a gcAenment

sponsored enterprises. In addition, USNH investments may not exceed 5% of any
institution's taal deposits a 20% of any institution's rret equity.

Cash equivalents represent amounts invested to satisfy current operating liabilities and

ixlude repurchase agreements money market funds and other mutual furxis Repurchase

agreements are limited to overnight investments only. Short-term investments are highly

liquid arrxxjnts held to support specific current liabilities Cash, cash equivalents and short-
term investments are gerterally uninsured and uncollateralized against custodial credit risk,

and the related mutual funds are not rated. Cash and cash equivalents totaled S75,422JX10

and S55,128JXX) at June 30,2019 and 2018, respeaively, and short-term investments totaled
$ 148,166^XX) and S151,1SOJDOO at Jutx 30,2019 and 2018, respeaively. See Note 4 for

additional information on fair value classifications

The components of cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments are summarized below (5 in thousands):

'  BalancesandTermsasbfJune30,2019..., .. : Balances and Terms as of June 30,2018

Weight^ Weighted

Lewll! :
,

Level 2 Total
. Average

■  Maturity Lewi 1 Level2 Total;
Average
Maturity

Cash balance $.29,431 • $ S 29,431,; Less than 1 year S -10,654 5  - 5 10654 Less than 1 year ,

Repurchase agreements "7,625;; •  7,625 Lessthan-1 year - 7,018 7,018 Less than lyear

Money market funds 38,366 -  • - ■  ■ 38,366" Less than 1 year ' 37,456 - 37,456 Less than 1 year
Subtotal cash and cash equivalents -'67,797, 7,625 75,422' 48,110 7,018 55,128."

Money market funds •.34,046 34,046 •Less than 1 year ■30,888 - 30,888 ■ Less than 1 year
Domestic equity 338 ■ 7 ■ 338 LessthanO year • 298 - 298 Less than 1 year
Mutual funds 86,372 • •  • -. ■  86,372 1 -5 years 93,928 -  • 93,928 1 -5 years
Corporate bonds - - ,: i 14,312 •r4,312. - :'• 1-5 years - 14,254 14,254 • 1-5 years :
US government and agencies' 11,987 .1.1,987 'T-5 years - 9,972 9,972■ 1 -5 years
Municipal borids • : ;  . ;■ 1,085:.. 1,085 1 -5 years:; • - 1,797: 1,797 '1-5 years
Convertible note - 26 26 1 -5 years. • - ■  13 13 .  1-5 years

'  Subtotal short-term investments n 20,756 27,410 l^J^ •  ,125,114 26.036 151,150
Total cash, cash equivalents. .

and short-terrh investments .  $188,553 $'35,035 ■ '5223,588 5173,224 $33054 , $206078
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3. Accounts, pledges and notes receivable
Accounts receivable at June 30 consisted of (he following fS in thousands):

j- ' '2019.;'. 2018

Grants and contracts "$17,185 ■ $16,296

Student and general ■  7,751 6,589

State of NH capital projects 1,238

Allowance for doubtful accounts ■  (2,905),' (3,495) ,

Total accounts receivable, net ■  $22,031 ■$20,628

Pledges receivable at June 30 consisted entirely of unconditional nonendowment
promises to pay as follows ($ in thousands)-.

!  ■ 2019' ., . 2018

Pledges receivable "$11,223 $12,119
Discounts and allowance for doubtful pledges (3,121) (3,319)

Total pledges receivable, net :  8,102' 8,800

Less: noncurrent portion (4,810)- (5,501)
Current portion $ 3,292 $ .3,299

Notes receivable at June 30 consisted primarily of student loan funds as follows
fS in thousands)-.

'  ] '2019 ■ 2018

Perkins loans $17,157 $22,134
Other loans, restricted and unrestricted 751 748

Allowance for doubtful loans (1,419) (2.101)

Total notes receivable, net 16,489' 20,781

Less: noncurrent portion ■ (14,293) (18,070)
Current portion .. $ 2,196 S 2,711

4. Investments
USNH's investment policy and guidelines specify permitted instruments, duration
and required ratings for pooled endowment funds. The policy and guidelines are
intended to mitigate risk on investments individually and in the aggregate while
maximizing total returns and supporting intergenerational equity of spending
levels. Illiquid investments are limited to 20% of the USNH consolidated endow
ment pool. Credit risk is mitigated by due diligence in the selection and continuing
review of investment managers as well as diversification of both investment managers
and underlying investments. Except in unusual circumstances, no more than 15% of
total portfolio assets may be invested in any one actively managed strategy. If an
investment manager is retained to manage more than one strategy, that manager
will be limited to 20% of total portfolio assets. Passively managed investment
strategies will not be limited within the portfolio; however, anyone manager of
passive strategies will be limited to 20% of total portfolio assets. Any manager
positions exceeding these limits will be reviewed by the Finance Committee for
Investments and this committee will decide the appropriate course of action to
bring aaive manager exposures back in line with the concentration limit. Private
global equity investments are limited to 20% of the endowment pool. No USNH
endowment investments were denominated in foreign currencies as of June 30,
2019orJune 30,2018.

GASB Statement No. 72, FairVolueMeasuremeni and Application, requires that USNH
categorize assets measured at fair value using a three-tiered hierarchy based on the
valuation methodologies employed.The hierarchy includes the following:

Level 1 — Value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets that are accessible at the measurement date

Level 2 —Value based on inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for an
asset either direaly or indirectly; and

Level 3 —Value based on unobservable inputs for an asset

In determining fair value of investment assets, USNH utilizes valuation techniques that
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs
to the extent possible. As a practical expedient to estimate the fair value of USNH's
interests, certain investments in commingled funds and limited partnerships are
reported at the net asset value (NAV) determined by the respective fund managers,
without adjustment when assessed as reasonable by USNH, unless it is probable
(hat all or a portion of the investment will be sold for an amount different from NAV.
Because these investments are not readily marketable, their estimated fair values may
differ from the values that would have been assigned had a ready market for such
investments existed, and such differences could be material. As of June 30,2019, and
2018, USNH had no plans or intentions to sell such investments at amounts different
from NAV. Investments reported at NAV as a practical expedient are not categorized in
the fair value hierarchy,

The endowment and similar investment holdir^s of the campuses and affiliated entities
as of June 30,2019 and 2018, respeaively, are summarized below ($ in thousands):

Campuses Affiliated Entities

2019 2018 I 2019
»

2018

.ftxoled endowments:
Campuses
UNH Foundation

Keene Endowment Association

Life income and annuity funds
Funds held in trust
Total . .

$541,633 •
-

.  ■ 86
16,265 •

$527,063

87

. 16,215

$
236326.'

■' 9,643
^  5,280

S
224,648

8,869

4,400

$557.984- $543,365 j $251,249 $237,917

The majority of USNH's investments are units of institutional commingled funds and
limited partnerships invested in equity, fixed income, hedge, natural resources, private
equity, or real estate strategies. Hedge strategies involve funds whose managers have
the authority to invest in various asset classes at their discretion, including the ability
to invest long and short. Funds with hedge strategies generally hold securities or
other financial instruments for which a ready market exists and may include stocks,
bonds, put or call options, swaps, currency hedges and other Instruments which are
valued by the investment manager. To the extent quoted prices exist the manager
would use those; when these are not available, other methodologies maximizing
observable inputs would be used for the valuation, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, capitalization of current or stabilized net operating income, replacement
costs, or sales contracts and recent sales comparable in the market. Private equity
funds employ buyout, growth, venture capital, and distressed security strategies. Real
asset funds generally hold interests in private real estate. Fixed income securities had
maturities up to 28 years and carried ratings ranging from AAA to Baa2 and AAA to A3
as of June 30,2019, and 2018, respectively. The mutual fund investments held in the
endowment pools are not rated.
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The following table summarizes the fair value of USNH's investments by type ordered alphabetically f$ in thousands):

' Balances as of June 30/2019 Balances as of June 30,20! 8

Investments Qassif)^. Investments
-  . Investments Classified Investments

in FairValue Hierarchy Measured in FairValue H'terarchy Measured

Level ! '• 'Levej2 Levels: at.NAV Total - Level! Level 2 Level3 at NAV Total

Endowment and similar investments-campuses-

Domestic equity ' $145,635 $  . V - $ 64,745 $210,3861 $131,372 $ $■ - $ 57301 $189,173
Global fixed income ■ • 18,553 •: .38.740 - ; - 57393 17,554 36311 - - 54,065
Hedge funds; ■

Distressed/Restruauring ... - ■■ - 20373 20373 - - - 15,347 15,347
Equity Hedge : - - - 26,138 •• 26,138-' - - 48,481 48,481
Event-Driven :■ ■- - 39,421 39,421 - -

- 33,192 33,192
•Fund of Funds — • - - •36,904 •• 36,904 -

- • 36,391 36,391
Inflation hedging assets -  . • 8^02 - ; 11,117 : 19,719 - '  8,213 10,222 18,435
International equity • 31,192 - - ; '58,046 89338 31,61-7 - 58,979 90396
Money market . .- 4,790 : - . - .  '4:790. • 14,671 - .

- .  14,671
Private equity & non-marketable real assets. •• • 37,561 '  37,561 - - - 26,799 26,799
Trust funds . 16366 - .  - 16,266' - 16315 - - 16,215
Total endowment and similar. •
investments - campuses. $200,170. $63,608 $  - , $294,206 $557,984 $195314 $60,939 $  - $287,212 5543,365 .

Endowment and similar Investments - affiliated entities

Domestic equity $ 38^03 $  • ■ - $  - • $:3i,49i : $ 70,294 5 24,193 $  - S  - •533373 557,766
Global fixed income 19,162 - 2,134 4,176 ; •1,883 27,355 21,359 - 3,107 1,611 26,077 •
Hedge funds; .  .

Distressed/Restructuring - - ; - 32,064 • 32,064 -
-

- 31,089 •  '31,089
Diversified •  • -241- •• 241 .  - 16,437 16,437
Equity Hedge .  ■_ ;• -  ' .20,931 ■ 20,931 - - - 15,029 15,029

Inflation hedging assets •2,664. • 9375 - • .  • -197 • 12,436 4,006 9,300 - 453 13,759 .
International equity .' 17336 ; - ' ,  — 41,231 •• 58,567. 12,865 - - 39,699 52364
Money market ,  8.083 - - - ~ •  8,083' 9.408 - - - 9,408-
Private equity & norKnartetable real assets .-... - 21,278 •21378" - - - 15,788 15,788
Total endowment and similar .
investments - affiliated entities S 86,048 $ 11,709 54,176 . $149316 $251,249 S 71331 $ 9,300 $3,107 $153,679 5237,917

Total endowment and similar investments "  $286,218 $75,317 - 54;i76 $443,522 $809,233 ■ S 242,450 $70,239 ■ $3,107 $440,891 5781,282

As of June 30,2019, UNHF had two equity hedge furvds with lock-up periods set to expire in nine months. Fixed-income, private equity and real estate funds classified as illiquid
have no ability to be redeemed at this lime. For USNH, of the 34 funds classified as illiquid, twelve are currently in liquidation; four are expected to start liquidation within the next
year; ten are expected to stan liquidation in 2 to 15 years, and eight currently have no expected liquidation dates. For UNHF, fourteen furxJs are classified as illiquid and are
expeaed to be liquidated over the next one to 12 years.

As of June 30,2019, USNH has two outstanding investment liquidation requests which have been limited by the respective fund managers. Management of the fund in which
USNH had the largest of these balances approved a plan on June 30,2018 that fully liquidated all balances in late fall of 2018 with a small holdback to be distributed by the end
of 2019. USNH's balance in that fund was $7,000 and 5369,000 as of June 30,2019 and 2018, respectively. USNH's balance In the remaining fund totaled $71,000 and S92,000 as
of June 30.2019 and 2018, respectively. Plans have not been communicated for the liquidation of remaining fund. The estimated fair values of the two investments at June 30.
2019 and 2018 are S78.000 and $461.000. respectively, it is uncertain when, or if, the funds will be fully colleaed at the NAV recorded.

Unfunded commitments with various private equity and similar alternative investment funds totaled $30,957,000 for USNH and $ 16,878,000 for UNHF at June 30.2019. This
compares to $30.277000 and $23078,000, respeaively, at June 30,2018.
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Investment liquidity for the past two years is aggregated below based on redemption terms or availability in thousands):

Liquidity Terms as of June 30,2019

1 ... . 1 •  Redemption
Daily Monthly Quartedy j Semi-Annual |Annual illiquid Total Notice Period

Endowment and similar investments -campuses

Money market S 4.790 5  - 5 S  . - 5  - 5  - 5'-"4,790 Same day
Global fixed income 57,293 - - - - 57393 Same day '
Inflation hedging assets 8,602 •  •11,117 - - • - 19,719 l-30days
International equity 31,192 ,  58,046 - •  - - • - 89,238 •  l-30days

Domestic equity ,  145,635 • 64,745 h  ■; •  - 210,380 l--60^ ;•
Hedge funds: -

1-60 daysEquity Hedge - - 24,986 - 1,153 .  . •  26,139
Event-Driven - - 19,795 19,626 - 39,421 60-65days
Distressed/Restructuring -

- - ; 20373 - 20,273 90 days
Fund of Funds - - -  ' - 36,904- 36,904 illiquid

Private equity& non-mailcetable real assets - - - -  . - 37361- 37361 Illiquid
Funds held in trust - .. - -• - .16,266 16,266. .. . illiquid
Total endowment and similar
investments - campuses S247i12 . 569,163 5109,526 ■ 519,626 521,426 • 5 90,731 5 557,984

Endowment and similar investments -affiliated entities

Money market S 8,083 5  - 5 , 5 - ■ 5  T . 5 5  8,083 Same day
Inflation hedging assets 12,436 •' -

■
- •  •• 12,436 Same day

Global fixed income- 22,126 - 1,053 -
- 1385 .  2391 27,355 • Same day, illiquid .

Domestic.equity 39,902 -  • 30,392 - - 70,294 1-60 days
Interiiational equity 32,327 18,192 • 8,048 -  ; - -• ,  58,567 1 -OO.days
Hedge funds:

Diversified - - - 241 •  - 241 . 45-60 days
Distressed/Resiruauring - - 20,011 - 12,053 .  • - 32,064 ■ 45-90 days
Equity Hedge -

• ,.15,465 5,466 - T 20,931 60-90 days
Private equity & non-marketable real assets - -  , - j - 21,278 21378 iilliquid
Total endowment and similar
investments • affiliated entities 5114,874 ■ 519,245 5 73,916 . ■ ^S'5;466 513379 S 23869 5251,249

Total endowment and similar investments S 362386 588,408 5 183,442 525,092 , 535305 5114600 5809333

Liquidity Terms as of June 30,2018

Daily Monthly Quarterly Semi-Annual Annual illiquid Total
Redemption'

Notice Period •

Endowment and similar investments - campuses
Moneymarket 514671
Global fixed income 54,065
Inflation hedging assets 8,213
International equity • 45,296
Domestic equity 13U72
Hedge funds:

Equity Hedge
Event-Driven
Fund of Funds
Distressed/Restruauring

• Private equity & non-marketable real assets
Funds held in trust

5  -

10,222
,  45,300 •

5

57801

23,721
"  " 18,985

5  -

'

326 •
14,146 :

5  -

24,434

•  35,930
15,347

_

5  -

61-
•  46i •

26,799
16,215

5  14671
54,065
18.435
90.596

189,173 •

48,481
33,192
36391

15,347
26,799
16,215

• Same day
Same day "

•  l-30.days'
.  . l-30day5

•  • l-60days
*

1-60 days
6065 days, illiquid
65-91 days, illiquid

■  90days
illiquid
•illiquid; .: .

Total endowment and similar
investments-campuses 5253,617 555322 5100307 ■ ■ 514.472 575,711 543336 5543,365

Endowment and similar investments - affiliated entities

Moneymarket ' 5 9.408
Global fixed income 22,971
Inflation hedging assets 13,759

. Domestic equity 25,407
International equity 13,782
Hedge funds;

Diversified
Distressed/Restructuring
Equity Hedge

Private equity & non-marketable real assets

5  ,-

31,282 .

5  -

32,359
7,500

7,786
19389
9,374

5  -

■3337

5,655

5  -
1,069

5,114
11300

_

5
2,037

.  15,788

5 9,408
-  26,077

13,759
57,766
52,564

16,437
31,089
15,029
15,788

Same day.
Same day, illiquid

1-35 days
-• . l-60days

1-90days

45-60 days ■
45-90 days
60-90 days

illiquid
/ "

-

-

•

Total endowment and similar
investments • affiliated entities 5 85327 531.282 ' " 5 76,608 S 9,192 517,683 517825 $237,917

Total endowmentand similar investments 5338,944 .  -586804
.. .

5177,115 t  . 523664 593394 561361

r •

578 U82
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5. Property and equipment
Property atxJ equipment aaivity for the years ended June 30.2019 and 2018 is summarized as follows fS in thousands^.

•  ' 2018 ;• 2019.: .

Balance •  Retirements Balance Retirements Balance

•: June 30,2017 Additions &Gsanges June 30,2018 .Additions & Changes ;• June 30,2019

Land 5  15,865 5 ■ ■ L: j: : 5 (277) 5  T 5,588 ' 5 62 '-'.; .'.5 ' (24) 5  15325

Buildings and improvements -1,680,661 134,977: (14,531) :  1301,107 38,405 i ... . (5,239) 1,834.273

Equipment 132,615 . 11,153 ■■ (5,181) - 138,587 H3327 (n',303);.- 140,811

Construction In progress, net 116,833 :  -'61,006 .  (134,977) 42,862 - : 48,425 (38,467) . 52,820

Total property and equipment 1,945,974 207,136 (154,966) 1,998,144 100,419 • -■ (55,033) 2,043330
Less: accumulated depreciation .(826346) (65096) 15,309 (876,133) (65357) .. 15321 (926,169)
Property and equipment net 51,119,628 •5142,040 5(139,657) ■ 51,122,011 .;.535,162 S{39312)' . •  51,117,361

Contractual obligations for major construction projeas totaled approximately S20338.000 and 535.380,000 at June 30,2019 and 2018, respectively.

6. Accrued employee benefits
Accrued employee ben^t obligations at June 30 are summarized below fS in ihousandi):

'  20liB, ' • 2019 ■

; Paymeritsto/ Expenses Paymwtsto/ . Expenses
Balance on Behalfof ' &Other Balance on Behalfof &Other . Balance Current

June 30,2017 Partidpants Changes June 30,2018 - Partidpants Chariges' ' June 30,2019 Portion

Additional retirement.contribution 5 2323 ■ 5 ;(121)' 5  92" 5 2394 S .(200)'' ■ ■ "s 77' 5 2,171 5 200

Employee separation incentives 4394 ■  ■ (1360) 535 ; 3,169 (1661)' 759 2367 1,649
Long-term disability ' 2,366 (511)- :' 232 2,087' - .  . (429) .  386 : 2,044 429

Workers'compensation 4,200 (543)" : :■ .  (366) 3,291 . ■■ ■ (1.216) 1,148: 3,223 1,216

Compensated absences 20,766 ■ V(2.095) 2,176 20,847 (2,088) 2,004 20,763 2,408 :

Other benefits 636 ,  . 329 965 29 994. 858

Total accrued employee benefits 534,585 5 (4,930) ■- ■ 5 2,998 532653 ■  5(5394) ■54,403 . ■ 531,462 "56,760

The Additiotvil Retirement Contribution program is a single employer plan
administered by USNH and offered to eligible employees hired between July 1, 1994
and June 30,2011. Under this plan, staff meeting certain voluntary defined benefit
plan contribution levels receive an additional 1% of their salary contributed to their
defined contribution retirement plan (see below) by USNH in lieu of postretirement
medical benefits. Employees meeting certain service guidelines prkx to July 1,1994
are also eligible for a guaranteed minimum employer retirement contribution of
S10,000 plus an additional 51,000 for each year of service in excess of 20 less 1 % of the
participant's salary account. There were 307 and 358 aaive employees meeting the
requirements for the guaranteed minimum employer contribution as of June 30,2019
and 2018, respectively.

The calculations for the Additional Retirement Contribution program are based on the
benefits provided by the program at the time of the last Wennial aauarial valuation,
December 31,2017, and were developed using the Entry Age Normal Cost Method.
The discount rate used in determining the accrued liabnlities was 4.09% and 3.44% for
2019 arxJ 2018, respeaively, based on Borxl Buyer 20-Bond General Obligation index
rate as of the measurement date. Inflation rates of 23% and salary increase rates of 3%
were used to determine the liability alor^ with the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table
vflth Scale MP-2016. USNH accmed 52,171,000 and $2,294,000 at June 30,2019 and
2018, respeaivety, for the related obligations. If the discount rate were to increase by
1%, the total liability at June 30,2019 would be 52,097,000. Similarly, if the discount rate

were to decrease by l%, the total liability at June 30,2019 would be 52,244,000. The
Additional Retirement Contribution program expense was (552,000) and (521,000) for
fiscal years 2019 and 2018, respectively.

USNH had designated cash assets to fully fund the Additional Retirement Contribution
obligations at June 30,2019 and 2018. These assets are not administrated through a
trust The Additional Retirement Contribution program is not available to employees
hired after June 30,2011. Eligible employees hired after June 30,2011 may elect to
participate in USNH's defined contribution retirement plans administered by others.
Retirement contributions by USNH for employees enrolled in the defined contribution
plans range from 4% to 10% of eligible salaries for enrolled panicipants USNH additions
to the defined contribution plans totaled 527,923,000 and 527,421,000 in 2019 and
2018. respeaively- Retirement contributions by plan members totaled 528,048^)00 and
526,724,000 in 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Early retirement and employee separation incentive programs were provided to
various faculty and staff during 2019 and 2018. Such incentives include stipends,
as well as medical, educational and other termination benefits. The future costs
associated with these incentive options is accrued as of the date of acceptance into
the program. The liability balances of 52,267,000 and 53,169,000 at June 30,2019 and
2018 represent obligations for 65 and 117 participants, respectively, which will be
remitted in fiscal years 2020 through 2024.
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USNH sponsors Other benefit programs for its employees, including long-term disability,
workers'compensation, and compensated absences. Lor^-term disability payments are

provided through an iixieperxlent insurer. The associated medical benefits are accrued
and paid by USNH until age 65, at which point the postretiremen! medical plan takes
over, if applicable. Workers'compensation accruals include amounts for medical costs

and annual stipends. A small number ofchronic workers'compensation cases will require

stipends and regular employee medical benefits for life. Coverage for such claims is
provided through an independent insurer, USNH also accrues amounts for compensated
absences as earned. These accrued balances at June 30 represent vacation and earned

time amounts payable to employees upon termination of employment

USNH is self-insured for a portion of certain risks, including workers'compensation,

employee lor^-term disability, and cenain student health insurance claims. Most
employee aod retiree medical and dental coverage provided by USNH is also self-
insured. The costs of self-insured medical and dental claims arvd administrative fees

totaled $65,632,000 and $66307,000 for fiscal year 2019 and 2018, respectively. These
amounts include $4,192,000 and $8,059,000 for estimated claims incurred but not

reponed as of June 30,2019 and 2018, respeaively.

In conjunction with the primary medical plan offering for active employees, USNH

purchases stop-loss coverage which limits the USNH cost of daims to SSOOJXX) per
participant in most casesThe liabilities recorded in the financial statements for all USNH
self-insured programs are developed by third party claim administrators and based on
historical daims data. Management reviewed the alculations for reasonableness and
believes the liabilities are sufficient to cover the actual claims incurred.

In addition to the benefits accruals included above, USNH created arxJ fully funded a trust

to hold assets set aside for its Operating Staff Retiren>ent Plan on June 29,2017, The

related asset and liability values are not induded in the financial statements as required

by the related accounting standards.The related investment balances as of Jurte 30,2019
and 2018 are summarized below (Sin thousands}:

Trust Investment Components 2019 . 2018

Cash arxi equivalents S 274 ■ S 311

Fixed income .  2.641 ■  . 2,779

Equities 3.193- , 3,200 ,

Real assets 78. 86

Total including accrued income ■  $6,186

.

S6376 .

The plan has been closed to new panidpants since 1987, At June 30,2019 there were

approximately 176current annuitants and 32 partidpants with deferred benefits, all fully
vested. This compares to 184currentannuitantsand 32 partidpantswithdeferred benefits
asofAjne 30,2018. The determination of total pension liabilities for this program was based

on actuarial calculations completed by the plan tnjstee as ofJune 30,2019 and 2018 The

calculations were developed using the Entry Age Normal Cost Method and the
RP-2014 employee monality tables. The 2019 valuation used Scale MP-2018, and

Scale MP-2017 was used for the 2018calculatioaThe discount rate used was

53% in both years based on the long-term expeaed rate of return on the related
investments. The plan fiduciary net position was $6,186,000 as of June 30,2019 and
$6,376,000 as of June 30,2018 which resulted in the recording of a net pension asset
of $311,000 and $724000 for fiscal years 2019 and 2018, respeaively. The aauarially

determined liability for the program was $5,875,000 as of June 30,2019 and

55,652,000 asof June 30,2018. If the discount rate were to increase by 1%, the net
pension asset at June 30,2019 would be $729,000. Similarly, if the discount rate were

to decrease by 1 %, the net pension liability at June 30,2019 would be 5169,000. The
plan expense was S193X100 and $37,000 for fiscal years 2019 and 2018, respeaively.

7. Postretirement medical benefits

The primary defined benefit postretirement medical plan has two components.
The first offering known as the Medicare Complementary Plan (MCP), was optional for
full-time status employees hired before July 1,1994 and not offered to new employees
after that date. At December 31,2018 and 2017, respectively, there were 946 and

777 former employees receiving benefits under this program along with their eligible
dependents. As of December 31,2018 and 2017, there were 155 and 179 active

employees, respectively, who along with their dependents, may eventually be eligible

to receive benefits under this program. The MCP provides limited medical coverage
for the remaining life of the participants. There are no costs to participate in the plan,
but retirees must pay a portion of the actual costs of services rendered.

Employees hired on July 1,1994 or later are eligible for the current offering which
provides bridge coverage only for retirees aged 62-65. Retired employees must have
reached age 62, completed at least 10 years of benefits eligible service, participated
in the active retirement plans during their last 10 years of benefits-eligible service,

and participated in USNH's active medical plan at the time of retirement in order to be
eligible for the plan. Retirees contribute to the plan at then-current emprfoyee medical

rates during the bridge period. As of December 31,2018 and 2017. respectively, there
were 128 and 97 retirees receiving benefits under this program along with their
dependents. As of December 31,2018 and 2017, respectively, there were also 3370

and 3,638 aaive employees who, along with their dependents, may eventually be

eligible to receive benefits under this program. The primary postretirement medical
plan holds no assets.Together, the above offerings constitute the primary postretirement
medical plan. This is a single-employer plan and funded on a pay-as-you-go basis
with benefits paid when due.

Third-party aauaries are used to determine the postretirement benefit obligation
and annual expense anxxjnts. Aauarial calculations reflect a long-term perspearve.
Such calculations involve estimates and, by definition, are subject to revision. The

healthcare cost trend and discount rate assumptions have a significant effea on the
amounts reported.

USNH adopted GASB Statement NoJS.AccouniingandFinancialReporiingfof
Postemploymeni BeneHls Other Than Tensions for its June 30,2018 financial statements.
The components of postretirement medical liability as ofJurte 30,2019 and 2018 were as

fckwsfSinthousands}

Postretirement Medical Plan Liability 2019 2018

Sen/ice costs S 1,359 ■ 5 1,416

Interest 3,024 ■■ 3,627

Benefit payments ,  (6,381) (6,923)

Difference between expected and

actual experience {1,511}

Changes in assumptions (4,968) "■ (4,857)

Net change ■  ■ (6,966) (8,248)
Liability at beginning of year ■ 89,710 97,958

Liability at end of year 582,744 589,710

Current portion 5 5,331

• •

5 5337
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The total postretirement benefit obligation is measured at December 31,2017 for theJune 30,2018 financial statements and December 31,2018 for the June 30,2019
financial statements based on the last biennial actuarial valuation, December 31,2017, developed using the Ent^ Age Normal Cost Method and the RP-2014 employee mortality

tables with Scale MP-2016. A rollfofward calculation was performed for the December 31,2018 measurement date. For measurement purposes the 2019 and 2018 initial rate of

increase in the cost of healthcare sen/lces was assumed to be 6i% for panicipants, decreasing 05% each year for four years thereafter until reaching an ultimate rate of45% per
year. The initial increase in the cost of prescriptions was assumed to be 95% for 2019 and 2018, decreasing 05% each year for ten years thereafter until reaching an ultimate rate
of 45% per year. Salary increases of 3% were included in the calculations for fiscal year 2019 and 2018, A single discount rate of 4,10% and 3,44% was used based on the Bond
Buyer 20-Bond General Obligation index rate as of December 31,2018 and 2017, respectively. The actuarially determined postretirement medical expense for the plan for the
years ended June 30,2019 and 2018 were $3,183,000 and $4,369,000, respectively.

The follcwing presents the sensitivity of the postretirement medical plan liability to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rates fS in thousands^.

OPEB Liability as of
December 31,2018

OPEB Liability as of
December31,2017

Sensitivity^to charige in discount rate. ' -

l%inaease Current rate . l%deaease

576,074'. $8Z744 " $90,470

$82,053 •"$^.710 • $98549

Sensitivity to change in health care costs

l%increase Currentrate l%decrease

$90595 ' $82,744 $75,736 .

$98,193 $89,710 $82302

USNH also accrued $ 102,000 as ofJune 30,2019 and 2018, for potential obligations related to postretirement care ofcertain USNH police personnel. The USNH Board oflrustees holds

the authority to change these benefit plans at any time Further information on the Additional Retirement Contribution, Operating Staff Retirement Plan, and Postretirement Medical
Plan can be found in the Required Supplemental Information on page 50 of the publication.

8. Long-term debt
USNH long^efm debt activity, exdushe ofdeferred losses Of gains on refuncfing for the years ended June 30.2019 and 2018 is summarized below (5 «fhousondsj:

2018 ' 2019

Additions Additions

Balance' &Other

Retiternents.:
Balance &Other Balance Current

June 30,2017 Changes June 30,2018 Chan^-' Retirements June 30,2019 Portion

NHHEFA bonds
•

•

Series 2005A $ 50,100 $  ■ - •••: S (1,900) $ 48300 $- 5 (1,950) •. $ 46350 5 1850

Series 2005B 73,405 i  ■ (4,450) 68,955 - (4595) 64360 4,760
Series 2007 46570 • (46570) -

- - -

Series 2009A 59,045 - (59,045) • - - - -

Series 2011A 6,000 -

.  . _. 6C00 -• . 6000 -

Series 201 IB 34,200 -• .;•.• • (1,925) . 32,275 - ■  (2,015) 30,260 2,110
Series2012 12,450 ■  (2,930) 9,520 .. - ' (3,050) 6,470 3,170
Series2014 17,775 ■  .• (2,070). 15,705 (2,110) 13,595 2,155
Series 2015 115870 • (2,610) • 113,260 (2,730) 110,530 2,855
Series 2016 53,890 - (1,675)- 52,215 (2390) 49,825 2,515
Series 2017A - 53805 . 53,805 - - 53,805 1,760
Series 2017B - 49,020 - 49,020 - ■  (1.100) • 47,920 1,950

Unamortized discounts/premiums, net 22,250 10085 (2,016) 30,319 ■  (1,915) 28,404 1,915
Capital leases 9,910 71 (1068) 8,913 t"- (1,113) 7,800 1,163

Total bonds and leases $501,465 •5112,981 5(126359} $488,187 5(22,968) 5465319 526303 •

New Hampshire Health ar>d Education Facilities Authority (NHHEFA) Bonds

NHHEFA is a public body corporate and an agency of the State of New Hampshire whose primary purpose is to assist New Hampshire not-for-profit educational and health care
institutions in the construction and financing (or refinancing) of related facilities. NHHEFA achieves this purpose primarily through the issuance of bonds. Since 1989 all USNH

bonds have been issued through NHHEFA. None of USNH's NHHEFA bonds provide for a lien or mortgage on any property, USNH is obligated under the terms of the NHHEFA
bonds to make payments from revenues received from certain housing, dining, student union, recreational, and other related revenue generating facilities financed by the bonds.

The state is not liable for the payment of principal or interest on the NHHEFA bonds, nor is the state direaly, indirectly or contingently obligated to levy or pledge any form of
taxation whatsoever or to make any appropriation for their payment. USNH Bond indentures have a provision that in an event of default resulting from a payment default by

USNH the principal may be accelerated and become immediately due and payable, at par, with interest payable thereon to the accelerated payment date. USNH is in compliance

with all covenants specified in the NHHEFA bond, as well as capital lease agreements, the most restrictive of which is maintenance of a debt-service coverage ratio, as defined, of

at least 1.0 to 1.0.

USNH's bond portfolio at June 30,2019 consisted of fixed rate and variable rate issues. The variable rate demand bonds (Series 2005A, 2005B, 2011B) are fully hedged via interest

rate swap agreements (see Note 9 below), with all three issues supponed by standby bond purchase agreements as of June 30,2019 and 2018. The variable interest rates for the

Series 2005A and 2005B Bonds at June 30,2019and 2018 were 1.95%and 156%, respeaively.The 201 IB Bonds variable interest rates at June 30,20l9and 2018 were 1.97%and

l57%,respeaFvely.
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USNH issued two Series 2017 Bonds during the year ended June 30.20)8. The Series

2017A Bonds were issued in the amount of $53,805,000 to advance refund and

defease the Series 2009A Bonds ($59,045,000), while the Series 20176 Bonds were

issued in the amount of $49,020,000 as a current refund of the Series 2007 Bonds

($46370,000). Construaion proceeds of $4,239,000 were unspent as of June 30,2018

and held in reserve in accordance with the related debt agreements. The related

investments were classified in Level 1 of the GASB fair value hierarchy because the
underlying securities held by the bond trustee are valued based on quoted market

prices. The Series 2009A advance refunding proceeds erf $60,067,000 and $62,019,000
were held in escrow in the principal payment Investment account on June 30,2019

and 2018, respectively.

Maturity dates and interest terms ofoutstanding debt issues are summariffid below:

NKHEFA Bonds Maturity Date Interest Terms and Rates

Series 2005A 7/1/2035 Variable with daily pricing

' Series 2005B 7/1/2033 Variable with daily pricing

Series 201 lA 7/1/2021 ■ Fixed at 3.5%

Series 2011B 7/1/2033 Variable with daily pricing

Series 2012 7/1/2020 Fixed at 1.7%

Series 2014 7/1/2024 Fixed at 2.1%

Series 2015 7/1/2045 Rxedat 33%

Series 2016 7/1/2046 Rxed at 2.7%

Series 2017A 7/1/2037 Fixed at 3.1%

Series 20! 78 7/1/2037 Fixed at 3.4%

Capital leases

On April 30,2004, USNH entered into a capital lease agreement In the amount of
$ 18,292,000 to finance a portion of the costs of equipment housed in UNH's utility
cogeneration facility. The related lease payments are due quarterly through June 2025,

including principal as well as interest at a fixed rate of 43%. The carrying value of the
related assets was $5341,000 and $6305,000 as of June 30,2019 and 2018, respectively.

State of NH general obligation bonds

The state, through acts of its legislature, provides funding for certain major plant
facilities on USNH campusei The state obtains its funds for these construction

projects from general obligation bonds, which it issues from time to time. Debt
service is funded by the general fund of the state, which is in the custody of the State
Treasurer. The state is responsible for all repayments of these bonds in accordance

with bond indentures. USNH facilities are not pledged as collateral for these bonds

and creditors have no recourse to USNH. Accordingly, the state's debt obligation

attributable to USNH's educational and general facilities is not reported as debt of
USNH. As construaion expenditures are incurred by USNH on state-funded educa

tional and general facilities, amounts are billed to the state and recorded as State of
New Hampshire capital appropriations.

Maturity of long-term debt obligations
USNH long-term debt obligations are scheduled to mature as Wlows using the associated

fixed, estimated synthetic fixed, and expeaed variable rates in effea as ofJune 30,2019

over the remaining terms of the individual issuances fS in thousands):

RscalYear Principal Interest total

2020 $24,288 $17,763 $ 42,051

2021 .  25,400 16,840 42,240

2022 28,760 15.873 • 44,633

2023 23,902. 14,708 38,610

2024 -  24398 13,786 38,384

"2025-2029 100,537 55,646 156,183

2030-2034 104,420 36,057 140,477

2035-2039 65360 15,988 81,548

2040-2044 25,670 6,501 32,171

2045-2047 13380 973 14,653

Plus: unamortized

discounts/premiums, net 28,404 - 28,404

Total $465,219 5194,135 $659,354

Other long-term obligations
In addition to the long-term debt presented above, postreiirement medical benefits liability in Note 7 and employment benefits liabilities in Note 6, USNH had the following
changes in other long-term obligations Cm thousands^.

Balance

.  . June30,2017

2018

Additions

-■&Other
Changes; Retirements

Balarxe
June 30,2018

2019 •

Additions'
&Other.
Changes Retirenients

Balance Current
June30,2019 Portion

Asset retirement and other obligations' $ 2,417
Refundable qovernment advances 16,643
Total other lonq-term obliqations $19,060

$209 ■ S(316)
503 • (467)' --

$712 $(783)v
.

S 2,310
16,679

$18,989
.

5 4,121 5(331)
• 834 - .

$4,955 ■ $(331)

$ 6,100 5313
17,513

523613 5313

'The current portion of these obligations is reported under accounts ixyable and accrued expenses.

9. Derivative instruments - interest rate swaps
USNH uses hedging derivatives to artificially fix interest rates on variable rate borxis outstanding. The terms and fair market value of swap contracts in place as of June 30,2019
and 2018were as follows (Sin thousands):

:i: -
Effiective

Date
Termination
'  Date

Payable
Fixed Swap

Rate

Receivable
.  Variable

SwapRate

Notional Amount
at June 30,

^19 2018

Swap^irValue
at June'30,

2019 2018

Series 2005A swap October 29,-2008 July 1,2035 • 3.6%" ■ 67%UBOR • $ 46,250 5 48,200 ■ 5 (9,185) S (7.165) :
Series 2005B swap "August 1,2005 July 1,2033 3.1% 63%LiBOR+0.29% 64,360 68,955 ■(7,263) -  (5,357)
Series 201 IB swap July'1,2011 - July 1,2033 4i% ■  ■ 67%UBOR. .- 30,260 32,275 (6628)" (5,772)

*

•  , Total $140370 $149,430 5(22.976) $(18,294)" • ■
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Effeaive interesi rates and other key terms of each derivative are described below:

N^riable Interest Rates Paid and Received Incept)or>-To-Oate

Counterpart's

Interest Rate Paid by
USNHto

. Bondholders as of '

Interest Rate Recdved by
USNH froifi Swap •

.  . .Counteipartieasof .
Effective Interest
Rate Through

All-in

Synthetkalfy
Rxed Interest

Rate'  Credit Rating 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 ' : 6/30/2019 6/30/2018 6/30/2019 6/30/2018

Series 2005A swap Aa2/AA- 1.9% 1.6%:/. "1.6% • 13% .  4.4% 43% 4.1%

Series 2005B swap Al/A-t- 1.9% ■ .1.6%' .15% 3.7% 3.6% 3.7%

Series 201 IB swap A3/BB6+ 2.0%/ 1.6% ■  :1.6% 13% ,5.3% 5,2% 5.0%

USNH utilizes interest rate swap agreements with counterparties to effeaively convert

its variable rate debt to fixed rates. The swaps' fair values and changes therein are

recognized in USNKs financial statements. Differences between the fixed and variable
rates in effect at each interest due date are settled net under each swap, increasing
or decreasing interest expense. The fair value of the swap instruments is determined

using option pricing models that consider interest rates and other market factors, the

credit risks of the parties to the agreements, and the estimated benefit or cost to the
USNH to cancel the agreements as of the reporting dates. Interest rate volatility,
remaining outstanding principal, and time to maturity will affea the swaps' fair values

at subsequent reporting dates. The values were estimated using the zercxoupon
discounting method. This method calculates the future payments required by the

swap, assuming the current forward rates implied by the yield curve are the market's
best estimate of future spot interest rates. These payments are then discounted using

the spot rates implied by the current yield curve for a hypothetical zero<oupon rate
bond due on the date of each future net settlement payment. Because the swap fair

values are based predominantly on observable inputs corroborated by market data,
they are classified in Level 2 of the GASB fair value hierarchy. USNH interxis to hold all

swap contraas to maturity.

These derivative instruments meet the criteria established by GASB Statement No. 53
for effective hedges as of June 30.2019 and 2018 and, therefore, their accumulated

changes in fair value are reflected as deferrals on the Statements of Net Position

(see Note 10). The notional amount of each swap is tied to the outstanding balance
of the related bonds throughout the life of the swap. Under the terms of each

swap, USNH makes fixed rate interest payments to the counterparty and receives a

variable rate payment from the counterparty. USNH makes variable rate payments to
bondholders on the related bonds. None of the derivatives require collateralization

by USNH at any level of negative fair market value.

Risk Disclosure
Counterparty Risk - This is the risk that the counterparty will fail to perform under

the terms of the swap agreement. As of June 30,2019, USNH was exposed to no

counterparty credit risk relative to its swaps as all swap market values were negative.

The swaps require collateralization of any positive fair value of the swap should the
counterparty's credit rating fall below thresholds identified in the swap contracts.
USNH mitigates counterparty risk by spreading the swap exposure among various

counterparties, by monitoring bond ratings continuously, and by requiring
collateralization in certain circumstances

Basis Risk -This is the risk of a mismatch between the variable rate received from the

swap counterparty arx) the variable rate paid by USNH to bondholders on the
underlying variable rate debiThe effeaive rate on the debt will vary depending on
the magnitude and duration of any basis risk shortfall or surplus. Based on current and

historical experience. USNH's financial advisors expect payments received under the

agreements to approximate the related bond payments over the life of the swaps
USNH manages basis risk by closely monitoring daily and monthly rates paid and

received on each transaaion. by diversifying bond remarketing agents and by varying
swap terms (e.g, 67% of LIBOR vs 63% of UBOR + 29 bps).

Termlrwtion Risk -This is the risk that the swaps could be terminated as a result of

any of several events which may include rating downgrades below specified levels
for USNH or the swap counterparty; covenant violation; swap payment default or

bankruptcy by either party; or default events urxler a bond resolution or trust inden

ture. UtxJer the terms of each agreement. USNH has the optbn to terminate a swap
at the fair market value at any time by providing notice to the counterparty, while the
counterparty may only terminate the swap upon certain termination events USNH

manages termination risk by adhering to bond covenant requirements employing
strategic iixlicator targets to maintain financial strength, monitoring swap market

values and counterparty credit ratings and diversifying swap counterparties

Swap Cash flows

Actual interest payments on the swaps vary as market rates vary. The table below
shows estimated annual future cash flows of the derivative instruments if interest

rates remain unchanged from June 30,2019 through the end of each swap
contract fS in thousands):

Notional Estimated Estimated Estimated

Bonds Interest Interest and Swap Net
RscalYear . ' Amortization Rereived Fees Paid Outflows •

2020, S' 8,720 S (2,273) 5 4,718 5 2,445

2021 ■ '9,215 (2,113) 4,390 2,277

2022 9,385 •(1,950) 4,056 "  2,106

2023 9.975 (1;777) 3,701 1,924

2024 10,170 (1,600) 3,339 1,739

2025-2029 4i.no (5,791) 12,125 6,334

2030-2034 45,145 (2,191) 4538 2,447

2035-2036 7.]50 (59) 131 72

Total 5140,870 5(17,754) 537,098 519,344
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10. Deferred inflows and outflows of resources

The componenis of Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources as of June 30,2019

and 2018 were as follows fS in thousands^.

•|; 2019 2018

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Accurriuiated decrease in feir value ofhedging derivatives $22,976 $18,294

.  Accounting loss on debt.refinancing ' 8,708 9,770

Changes of assumptions:, ' .
Operating Staff Retirement Plan .471 ■ 179

Additional Retirement Contribution Program .18 .■ 22
Net difference between projected and actual earnings:

■  ■

'  Operating Staff Retirement Plan 60 74

Benefit payments subsequent to the'measurement date :

Postretiremen! Medical Plan 2,053' 3,097

Additional Retirement Contribution Program ■ .  ; 199
Asset retirement obligations 1,492 -

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $35,977 $31,436

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Accounting gain on debt refinancing :  •$' 357

,,

$  616

Annuities-unconditional remainder interest 2,139" 1.753

Changes of assumptions:
Operating Staff Retirement Plan .  58

Postretirement Medical Plan 8,2.71 4,343

Additional Retirement Contribution Program -4 4

Difference between expected and actual experience:
Operating Staff Retirement Plan 6 4

Postretirement Medical Plan 1,191- 1351
Additional Retirement Contribution Program 474 629

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources .  $12,500 $ 8,700

The accumulated decrease in fair value of hedging derivatives is recorded to offset the
value of USNH's Interest-rate swap liabilities which qualify for treatment as an effective
hedge based on historic interest flows USNH does not currently expect to terminate
any of the swap agreements The accounting gain on debt refinancing relates to the
Series 2012 and 2016 bond issuances while the accounting loss on debt refinancing
relates to the Series 2005B, 2011B, 2015, and 2017A bond issuances These costs will
be amoaized as a component of interest expense over the remaining terms of the
new debt.

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to benefit payments
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the
respeaive benefit liability in the year ended June 30.2020.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources which
are related to retirement programs will be recognized as a component of
pension and 0PE8 expense over the next nine years as summarized below
(S in tfiousondsj;

- Operating Additional Post-
Staff Retirement retirement

Rscal Retirement Contribution Medical
Year ■ Plan Program Plan

2020 $217 $(150) 5(1,200)

2021 217 (150) (1,200)
2022 28 (150) (1,200)
2023 0) (10). (1,200)
2024 . 6 - (1,200)
2025 - -  • (1.200)
2026 - - (1,200)
2027 -  ■ - (1.062)

Total $467 5(460) $(9,462)

11. Pass-through grants
USNH distributed S169,091,000 and S173,918,000 of student loans through the US
Department of Education Federal Direct Lending program during 2019 and 2018,
respectively. These distributions and related funding sources are not included as
expenses and revenues, or cash disbursements and cash receipts, in the accompa
nying financial statements. The Statements of Net Position include receivables of
$141,000 and $260,000 as of June 30,2019 and 2018, respectively, for direct loans
disbursed in excess of US Department of Education receipts.

12. Endowment return used for operations
The objeaive of the annual spending formula for endownrrent return used for
operations is to provide sustainable continued future support for ongoing programs
at current levels assuming moderate inflation. To the extent that endowment yield is
Insufficient in any one year to meet the required spending distribution, accumulated
net gains are utilized to fund the distribution. For the USNH pool, the distribution rate
is established annually by the USNH Board ofTrustees. Staning in fiscal year 2019, the
USNH pool calculated the distribution as a percentage of the average market value
per unit for the previous twelve quarters with a rate of 4.7% as of December 31,2017.
The rate was 4.7% for 2018 calculated as a percentage of the pool market value per
unit as of December 31,2016, For the UNHF primary pool, the distribution rate was
5.3% and 5.2% for 2019 and 2018, respeaivety, calculated as a percentage of the
average market value per unit for the previous twelve quarters.

The components of endowment return used for operations for 2019 and 2018 are
summarized below (S in (housands):

Components of Endowment Payout 2019 2018

Pooled endowment yield - campuses ,  5 7,412- $ 6398
Pooled endowment yield - affiliates 2,492 1,861

Trusts, life income and annuities yield, net of
gains utilized 643 1,148

Gains utilized to fund distribution - pooled campuses 14,094 9,070

Gains utilized to fund distribution - pooled affiliates 9,'138 .. 9,315
Endowment return used for operations 533779 527,992

—

The increase in gains utilized to fund distributions in 2019 relates to fringe benefits
and debt service costs funded by USNH quasi-endowments. No distributions from
these funds were made in prior years-
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13. Operating expenses by function
The following tables summarize USNH's operating expenses by funaionai classification for the past two years fS in thousands)-.

• i ' Supplies Internal "Depreciations! 2019 .

' Compensation & Services Utilities Allocations ^ Amortization Total

Campuses-current funds -

Instruction S202333 5 21,055 ■■ 5 15. .. 5 .  - 5. - ■ " 5223,403 .

Auxiliary services :S4,I15 51,152 2,602" ■ ■ 48,670 .  •• • 156,539

Research and sponsored programs 74,937-.- 34364 : -■ _ 85 ■ ■ : - 109386

'Academic support 68,821 18,791 37
-

- 87,649

Student services ■ 3^363 15,131 " ,  12.. , (95) 48,411

Institutional support 48,336 18,761 ■ 79. ■ • (23,679) "■ ; ■ - 43,497

Operations and maintenance . • 23,575 ■ ■ 17,962 •  - 15,724 • {25,181} • 32,080

Fundraising and communications ir,562 6326 ■  2372 , - : ' 21,260

Public service ,  11,240 3,125 - 14,365

Subtotal - current funds .528,282 187,367 18354 , 2387 736,790

Campuses • other funds. •333,- • . '  15,888 - ,  • 28 .  . - 65,349 ,i 81,598

Affiliated entities 6,113 1,124 •j- 1 :(2387) - . • 4351

Total ■  .1.- 5534,728 5204379 SI8383:" 5  - 565,349 5823,039

Supplies Internal 2018
; Compensation & Services Utilities . Allocations ', Depreciation Total

Campuses - current funds
Instruction 5201310 5 22329 ■ - 5 17 5 5 5223,756
Auxiliary services .  53,940 53,695 3,406 .• • - 45.921 .  .. ■- 156,962

Research and sponsored programs ■ ■ ■ 74,705 35,432 ■ 18 ■ ^ - 110,155

. Academic suppon 69,334. . . 21,075 ■40 ■ 245 90,694

Student services 34,337 ■ 14,634 ' .  . ' ■ 10 ■  (95) '  •; - ■ 48386

Institutional support ■■ 47326 17,221 •76. (22317) • . . -• - 42,906

Operations and maintenance -v., 23,175 16;602 15,482:- , (24,148) 31,1,11 ,
Fundraising and communications 12385: 6,925 2,257 ;■ " 21,467

Public service 10,430 3,125 • -
•_ ; : 13,555

Subtotal - current funds ■ .-■ ■'527,542 190,938 19,049"-. • . 1,963 "r 739,492

Campuses - other funds 155. 16,494 , 16; ■. J - 65,096 81,761

'Affiliated entities 5,02i;";: , 867 ■  (1,963) 3,925

. Total 5532,718 , : . 5208,299 . 519,065 5  - 565,096 : 5825,178
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14. Net position
It is USNKs policy to use restriaed funds before accessing unrestriaed balances. The table
below details USNKs net position as of June 30,2019 and 2018 f$ ihousands):

Components of Net Position •2019 2018 .

Net investment in capital assets S 685,015 $'665,194

Restricted financial resources

Nonexpendable

Historic gift value of endowment • campuses 124,287 118,298

Historic gift value of endowment - affiliated entities 157.414' .145,671

Total restricted nonexpendable resources 281,701 263,969

Expendable
•

Held by campuses: ..

Accurriulated net gains on endowment 56,559 54375

Fait value of restriaed funds functioning as endowment .15,032 14,761

Gifts, grants and contracts '  .41,443 44,467

Life income and annuity futxis 15- 12

Loan funds 3,585' 5,158

Held by affiliated entities;
Accumulated net gains on endowment '• .43,192 42,424

Fair value of restriaed funds functioning as endcwnwt ■  44.054. . 44,108

Other 9,457 "  11,034

Total restricted expendable resources ,  213,337 216,339

Unrestricted financial resources

Held by campuses:
Educational and general reserves 6,hl 20,998

Auxiliary enterprises' ;  : 45,721 42838

Internally designated reserves 20,879 13,003

Unrestricted loan funds 1,487- 1513

Unexpended plant funds 144.841 127,776

Fair value of unrestriaed funds functioning as erxJowment .. 185,442 184,148

' Other 779 971

Less; posiretirement medical liability"' {90.153)- (92307)

Held by affiliated entities;
Fair value ofunrestricted funds funaioning as endowrneni 1308 1314

Otfter 1668 1,900

Total unrestricted financial resources 318493 302.154

Total Net Position 51,498546 51,447656

'"As discussed in Note 7jhe20l9and20i8posmiiement medical liability is shewn net of

the related deferred inflows and outflows of resouxes. See Note 10 for additional information
in (his regard.

15. Commitments and contingencies
USNH holds insurance for losses related to real property, as well as professional,
environmental and general liability claims. FYoperty coverage is limited to S500 million
in the aggregate with varying deduaifcJe levels Liability coverage and deductible levels
are based on management's assessments of the risks of related losses. Settlements
below the relevant deductible amounts are funded from unrestricted net position,

USNH makes expenditures in connection with restricted government grants and
contracts which are sut^'ect to final audit by government agencies Management is of the
opinion that the number of disallowances if any, sustained through such audits would not
materially affea the financial position, results ofoperations or cash flows of USNH,

USNH is a defendant in various legal actions arising out of the normal course of its
operations Although the outcome of such aaions cannot presently be determined,
management is of the opinion that the eventual liability, if any, will not have a rriaterial
effea on USNH's financial position, results of operations or cash flows

16. Component units
Condensed information from the audited financial statements of the University of New

Hampshire Foundation. Inc (UNHF) is presented below f$ in millions):

1  2019 2018

Condensed information from the Statements

of Net Position as ofJune 30,

ErxJowment investments ! 524l' 5229

Other assets -  14 14

Total Assets 255 ' .  • -243

Annuities payable 3 2

Other liabilities and deferred, inflc^ of resources ■  -l-i •• 3
Total Liabilities and Deferred

Inflows of Resources 8 5

Total Net Position

.

5247 5238

1. 2019 2018

Condensed Infoimation from the Statements

of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position for the years ended Jur>e 30,

Gifts and other support .  • S-29 5 35

investment income 11 16

Total Revenues 40 51 ""

Distributions to UNH •  .23 25

Administrative and other expert 8  ■ 7

Total Expenses 31 ■ ^
Increase in Net Position 5  9 ■  ii9

■  ,2019 2018

Condensed information from the Statements

of Cash Flows for the years ended June 30,

Receipts from gifts and other sources 5 19 . 5 21

Payments to UNH and suppliers
•

(34)

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (10) (13)

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (1) .  (4)
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital
Financing Activities 12 , 15

Change in Cash and Equivalents 5  1 5 (2)

A copy of the complete financial statements for UNHF can be obtained on their web
site at httpsy/www.unh.edu/give/financial-reports or by contacting the Advancement
Rnance and Administration Office at (603) 862-1584.

17. Subsequent events
Management has evaluated the impaa of subsequent events through the date that the
financial statements v^re available for issuance October 30,2019, and concluded that

no material events have occurred which would require recognition or disclosure.
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Required Supplemental Information
(Unaudited)

Postretirement Medical Plan

Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Relaied Ratios fior the years ended Jurte 30,
($in{h<xisands)-.

Additional Retirement Contribution (ARC) Program
Schedule ofChanges in Total Pension Liability and Related Ratios for the years ended June 30,
(Sinihcxjsands)-.

2019 ' 2018 .  1 -2019 2018 2017' •

' Service costs ■  5' 1,359;- 5  1,416 Service costs 5  31 5  41 5  103'-

Interest 3,024 3,627 'Interest '66 88 .• .• .118 '

Benefit payments (6.381) (6,923) Benefit payments" '  ■ (123) (95) ■'/ (518) "
Differences between expeaed and aaual experience

■  -
(1611) Differences between expected and

Changes in assumptions'" (4,968) (4357) actual experience (89) ■  (328)
Net Change in Postretirement Changes in assumptions (97) 26 -• (5)

Medical Liability (6,966) (8,248) Net Change In ARC Liability (123) (29) " '(630)
Total Postretirement Medical Plan Liability- Total ARC LiaWlity at beginning of year 2294.- 2,323 2,953.

beginning of year •  .89,710. 97,958 ' Total ARC Liability at end of year 5 2,171 ^ 5 2,294 5- 2,323
Total Postretirement M^ical Plan Liability- . Current portion . 5 '200 " 5  95 5- 455

end of year' S 82,744 S 89,710 Covered payroll ' 524,369 526,646 '529,409
Current portion S. 5.331 S  5,837 Total Liability as a Percentage of
Covered payroll ■  5290,287 . 5290,107 Covered Payroll 8.9% 8.6% 7.9%

Total Liability as a Percentage ofCovered Payroll 286% 30.9%

Operating Staff Retirement Plan
Schedule ofChanges in Net Pension Assets and Related Ratios for the years ended June 30, fS in ihousands^.

i  2019 2018 • 2017® 1  ' 2019. . 2018 2017®.

Plan Fiduciary Net Position Plan Pension Liability '
Beginning balance .  56376 ■ 56,700 5 - - " Beginning balance .5(5j552) 5(5,707) ,5(6345)
Employer contributions -

-
" 6,700 Service costs •• (3) - (20)

•  Plan administrative costs :-(13) - (13) - Interest, net of actuarial gain/loss (290). (292) " (298)..
.  Net investment income 407 274 -■ Benefit payments 684 ■ 585 956 -

Benefit payments -  '(584) ■ (585) Changes in assumptions (514) (238) •  --

Fiduciary net position 56,186 56376 56700 Net Change in Total Pension Liability ■  5 (223) 5  55 ■5. "638
Total Pension Liability at end of year (5375) (5,652) '(5,707), Total Pension Liability at end of year 5(5,875) 5(5,652) 5(5,707) .

Net Pension Asset 5'311 ' . 5 724 5 993 • Covered payroll ■ • 5 (850) ■ 5 (961) 5(1,007)
■ Plan Net Position as a Percentage ofToial Net Pension Asset as a Percentage of

-

f^rrsion Liability 1053% 1123% '.117.4% Co^«(ed.Payroll 36.6% 75.3% -'986%

Notes to Schedules:

Changes in assumpfionsrekne 10 discouniroiechangei. The faieswere'l.1% for 2019. and 3.4%for20i8bosedonochangeintherda(ed index. See Noie 7 for additional informaiion.
" Fiscalyear2017beneHi payments included separation costs resulting in larger amounts

Reflects payments andadjustments made before the estat^ishmentofthe related trust on June 29.2017.

See accompanying independent auditor^ repat
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Introduction

The Audit Committee

University System of New Hampshire:

We are pleased to have the opportunity to meet with you on October 24, 2019 to discuss the results
of our audit of the financial statements of the University System of New Hampshire (the System) as
of and for the year ended June 30, 2019. Our audit was conducted in accordance with the terms
established in the audit engagement letter dated April 25, 2019.

We are providing this document in advance of our meeting to enable you to consider our findings
and hence enhance the quality of our discussions. This document should be read in conjunction
with our audit plan, presented on April 25, 2019. We will be pleased to elaborate on the matters

covered in this document when we meet.

Our audit is substantially complete. Subject to the Committee's approval, we expect to be in a
position to sign our audit opinion on the System's financial statements.

We expect to issue an unmodified Auditors' Report.

We draw your attention to the following communications included in the appendix to this report;

— Responsibilities

— Responsibilities for other information in documents containing audited financial statements

— KPMG independence quality controls

— Report on the financial statements

— Report in accordance with Governmenf Aud/f/ng Sfandanc/s

— Management representation letter - Draft

© 2019 KPMG LLP 8 Deisware NaMiiy pennefsrcp anJ mi* U 5 merriooi nm o! the KPMG nevwrv c( ir.aepenoem rrierr.sei t.rni:
eftiliatea wiifi KPMG inisfnaiioiisi Cocperaiive ("KPUG iiite'iiationai'i a S.viss en:i!v Ati rtghis resGfvea i-JDPPS 80^283
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How we delivered audit quality

Continuous

improvement

0

Root cause

analysis

Depth of experience

A ̂2
Years Industry Continuity Involvement

experience experience of team of specialists

Two-way

communication

Tailored approach

r*-
Profound

understanding Materiality

Challenge and insight

m
Risk-based

Ongoing
dialogue

No

surprises

©

Action

^  i *

Data and

analytics
Independent Skepticism Robust

and challenge

judgment

Timely
reporting

Emerging

challenges
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Audit summary

Auditor's report

Unmodified opinion on the financial statements

Emphasis of Matter paragraph regarding adoption of GASB 83, Ceilain Asset Retirement
Obligations. Certain Disclosures Related to Debt. Including Direct Borrowings and Direct
Placements, and GASB 88, GASB 88, Cetiain Disclosures Related to Debt. Including Direct
Borrowings and Direct Placements

Other Matter paragraph details KPMG's responsibility over the Required Supplementary
Information

Chanaes to our planned risk assessment and planned audit strate

There were no significant changes to our planned risk assessment and planned audit strategy as
presented to you on April 25, 2019.

Audit misstatements identified

Corrected None

Uncorrected None

Financtal presentation and

disclosure omissions None

Control deficiencies reported

Material weaknesses None

Significant deficiencies None

Control deficiencies None

Accounting judgments related to estimates

Less sensitive Neutral More sensitive

Current year

Our assessment of the risk associated with valuation estimates has not changed from the prior year as
there have been no modifications in the accounting judgments made by management.

Financial presentation and disclosure omissions No matters to report

Concerns regarding application of new accounting pronouncements None noted

Alternative accounting treatments No matters to report

Unusual transactions No matters to report

201S KPMG UuP a Deicwaro l.rn:;ca liaMiiy Dancers.iiri and me U 3 memooi l^rrn ot ttie KPMG neiwcxv cf indCderyden: meniMr c
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Audit results

Findings at a glance

Significant risks

Uncorrected

misstatements

Number of:

Corrected

misstatements

Control

deficiencies

□ Management override of controls*

Significant audit areas

□

□
Q
□
$

Q
B

Cash and investments

Contribution revenue, related receivables,
and net assets

Debt and related items

Capital assets and related depreciation

Tuition and fees and related receivables

Grants and contracts revenue; sales of auxiliary
services; and NH appropriations

Compensation and benefits and related liabilities

Supplies and services expenses and related liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

'Ma.'.A9«ment overrWa ot eontroit it an inharani tlgnMcani risk in all anttUas
indicatas no fndings •
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Audit results (continued)
^ m za M,

Skepticism | D&A Specialists Challenge

Management override of controls

Significant risk of fraud

The risk

— Management is in a position to
perpetrate fraud because of
management's ability to
manipulate accounting records
and prepare fraudulent
financial statements by
overriding controls that
otherwise appear to be
operating effectively. Although
the level of risk of management
override of controls will vary
from entity to entity, the risk
nevertheless is present in
all entities.

Our response

Internal controls

— Assessed

management's
design and
implementation of

controls over

journal entries
and post-closing
adjustments

— Assessed

management's
design and
implementation of
controls over

recording of
investment results

— Assessed

management's
design and
implementation of
controls over

compliance with
debt covenants

Procedures

Assessed the appropriateness of
changes compared to the prior year to
the methods arid underlying assumptions
used to prepare accounting estimates.

Performed risk assessment procedures
to determine existence of any
high-risk entries.

Performed procedures over material
manual post-closing adjustments to
ensure accuracy and appropriateness of
the entries.

Performed procedures over the
completeness, existence, accuracy, arid
valuation of the investment portfolio at
the System, which includes
benchmarking comparisons for
alternative investments.

I

Performed procedures to determine
the System's compliance with
debt covenants.

Results

Based on our procedures performed, no significant
findings were noted.

C 2C1& KPMG UlP s Delff.vare limned liabil.ty oaf."'?tsh;p and me U S member *;rm c' die KPMG netwcfV of ir.aeoenceni member firms
sffilisfsdwitfi KPMG iniern.rioi-.ai Cooper aii'.-s ("KPMC infe-rmtionsl; a S-viss eoniy All npms resotvcd rjOPPS flO-siss



Audit results (continued) ' ̂  It A
SKepticism O&A Speciatists Challenge

Cash and investments

Procedures performed

— Gained an understanding of management's cash and investment processes

— Confirmed directly held cash and securities with financial institutions

— Confirmed a sample of alternative investment funds

— Tested bank reconciliations

— Back-tested the December 31, 2018 calculated NAV against the NAV reported to the Foundation for the same date
to establish reliability

— Reviewed audited fund financial statements, fund holdings, benchmarking of fund performance, communications
with fund managers, and other monitoring documentation for alternative investments

— Price-tested directly held securities

— Reviewed accounting for year-end transactions (i.e., unsettled trades)

— Tested reasonableness of investment return components

— Reviewed classification of cash and cash equivalents and restricted balances

— Reviewed financial statement presentation and disclosures, including classifications within the fair value hierarchy
in Levels 1, 2 and 3, as well as liquidity and related capital commitments to ensure compliance with GASB
standards and U.S. GAAP

— Considered effects of subsequent events

Significant accounting estimate(s):

— Alternative Investments: Real estate. Hedge. Private Equity, and Collective

Observations:

— GAAP requires that investments be reported at fair value. Currently, the Promissory Notes Receivable with the
New Hampshire Community Loan Fund are presented at face value plus accrued interest and categorized in Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy. Although it is likely that the difference between the Notes' estimated fair value and
carrying value is not currently material, it is possible that if in the future the interest rate environment were to
change materially or the borrowers' credit were to deteriorate, that the fair value differential could become material.
We therefore recommend that management continue to monitor the balance amid these factors to determine
whether an appraisal of the investment may be necessary in future periods.

C 2019 KPMG LuP 0 Dei8v/afo panr.afsnip ar.d ine u S rrtemoe; tim z' the KPUG netv/ohi cf indcpcnSen: merrioe; hrms o
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Audit results (continued) A
Skepticism ' D&A Specialists Challenge

Contribution revenue, reiated receivables, and net assets

Procedures performed

— Gained an understanding of management's processes surrounding gifts, pledges and distributions

— Tested a sample of new gifts to determine whether they are properly recognized and classified

— Tested roll-forward of endowment activities, including new endowments, reclassifications between net position
categories, and transfers

— Reviewed required financial statement disclosures to ensure presentation was in compliance with GASB standards
and U.S. GAAP

Significant accounting estimate(s):

— Pledges receivable, net

Observations:

— No significant matters noted

C 2019 KPMG LLP a Dela-.vare limned liat-ilny paftnersmp and tie U S memcei tirm o! iiif KPMG netwcrv ol mdeperrieni memDoi fnms Q
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Audit results (continued) ^ ̂ A
Skepticism D&A Specialists Challenge

Debt and related Items

Procedures performed

— Gained an understanding of management's processes surrounding debt and related items

— Confirmed outstanding debt with financial institutions

— Tested compliance with financial debt covenants

— Tested reasonableness of interest expense

— Reviewed required financial statement disclosures to ensure presentation was in compliance with GASB standards
and U.S. GAAP

Significant accounting estimate(s):

— None

Observations:

— No significant matters noted

—- There were no bond issuances or refundings in fiscal 2019

O20i9 Kf'MG LLP a Dela-.vare llriiiied LaSiliiy oafinersMip ar.a ihe U 3 me.Tisor firm of t!is KFMG reiworL ct inflepenaen: ine;nDei iTtn? Hrt
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Audit r6SUltS (continued) ^ m ^
Skepticism ! D&A Specialists Chatlenge

Capital assets and related depreciation

r Procedures performed

— Gained an understanding of management's processes surrounding capital assets and related depreciation

— Tested fixed asset additions

— Reviewed construction-in-process accounts

—• Tested reasonableness of depreciation

— Reviewed required financial statement disclosures to ensure presentation was in compliance with GASB standards
and U.S. GAAR

Significant accounting estimate(s):

— Estimated useful lives of capital assets

Observations:

— No significant matters noted

t\rlrwKM
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Audit results (continued) ^ ̂
Skepticism O&A Specialists Challenge

Tuition and fees, and related receivables

Procedures performed

— Gained an understanding of management's processes surrounding tuition and fees

— Performed detailed procedures over tuition revenue, and analytical procedures over related student aid

— Tested significant receivable balances through subsequent cash receipts and adequacy of allowance for doubtful
accounts

— Reviewed required financial statement disclosures to ensure presentation was in compliance with GASB standards
and U.S. GAAP

Significant accounting estimate(s):

— None

Observations:

— No significant matters noted

St
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Audit results (continued) ^  A
Skepticism O&A Specialists Challenge

Grants and contracts revenue; sales of auxiliary services; and NH appropriations

Procedures performed

— Gained an understanding of management's processes surrounding these revenue streams

— Tested propriety of allowable costs for payroll and non-payroll reimbursements under sponsored grants
and contracts

— Performed analytical procedures over grants and contracts revenue

— Performed detailed procedures over sales of auxiliary services revenue

— Confirmed State of NH appropriations

— Reviewed required financial statement disclosures to ensure presentation was in compliance with GASB standards
and U.S. GAAP

Significant accounting estimate(s):

— None

Observations:

— No significant matters noted
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Audit results (continued) ^ @ A
Skepticism O&A Specialists Challenge

Compensation and benefits and related liabilities

r Procedures performed

— Gained an understanding of management's processes surrounding compensation and benefits and
related liabilities

— Tested a sample of payroll expenses for proper recording and classification

— Performed analytical procedures over benefits expense and related accruals

— Reviewed appropriateness of OPEB actuarial calculations and related liabilities

— Reviewed GASB 75 activity and actuary report

— Reviewed required financial statement disclosures to ensure presentation was in compliance with GASB standards
and U.S. GAAP

Significant accounting estimate(s):

— OPEB liability

Observations:

— No significant matters noted
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Audit results (continued) @ AY A
Skepticism D&A Specialists Challenge

Supplies and services expenses and related liabilities

Procedures performed

— Gained an understanding of management's processes surrounding supplies and services expenses and
related liabilities

— Tested a sample of expenses for proper recording and classification

— Performed a search for unrecorded liabilities

— Reviewed significant accounts payable and accrued liability balances

— Reviewed required financial statement disclosures to ensure presentation was in compliance with GASB standards
and U.S. GAAR

Significant accounting estimate(s):

— None

Observations:

— No significant matters noted
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Audit results (continued) ^ @ A
Skepticism D&A Specialists Challenge

O Commitments and contingencies

Procedures performed

— Obtained legal letters and reviewed any litigation assessments

— Reviewed disclosure of other commitments and contingencies

— Performed standard tax provision review in relation to financial statements

Observations:

— No significant matters noted
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Required communications and other matters

Type Response

Related parties No matters to report.

Going concern No matters to report.

lllegai acts or fraud No actual or suspected fraud involving management, employees
with significant roles in internal control, or where fraud results in a

material misstatement in the financial statements were identified

during the audit.

Noncompllance with laws
and regulations

matters to report.

Modifications

to auditors' report

Emphasis of Matters paragraph added to highlight adoptions of
GASB 83 and.GASB 88. Our report is not modified with respect,
to these matters.;

Subsequent events No matters to.report.

Independence We hereby confirm that as of October 24, 2019; we are
independent accountants with respect to the System under all
relevant professional arid regulatory standards.

Significant difficulties
encountered during
the audit

No matters to report.

Disagreements with
management or

scope limitations

No matters to report.

Management's consultation
with other accountants

No matters to report, of which we are aware.

Significant findings or

issues discussed, or subject
to correspondence
with management

No matters to report.

Other findings or issues No matters to report.

Material written

communications between

KPMG and management

Engagement and management representation letters.
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Responsibilities

Management is responsible for:

— Preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, including disclosures, in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAR).

— For the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

— Identifying and ensuring that the System complies with laws and regulations applicable to its activities,
and for informing the auditor of any known material violations of such laws and regulations

— To provide access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements, such as records,.documentation, and other matters,
additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit, and
unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom we determine it necessary to obtain
audit evidence.

— Adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and affirming in the representation
letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by the auditor are immaterial, both
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

— Providing the auditor with a letter confirming certain representations made during the audit that includes,
but is not limited to, management's;

- Disclosure of all significant deficiencies, including material weaknesses, in the design or operation of
internal controls that could adversely affect the System's financial reporting.

- Acknowledgement of their responsibility for the design and implementation of programs and controls to
prevent, deter, and detect fraud.

The Audit Committee is responsible for:

— Oversight of the financial reporting process and intemal control over financial reporting (ICOFR).

— Oversight of the establishment and maintenance by management of programs and controls designed to
prevent, deter, and detect fraud.

Management and the Audit Committee are responsible for:

— Setting the proper tone and creating and maintaining a culture of honesty and high ethical standards.

— Ensuring that the System's operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of laws and
regulations, including compliance with the provisions of laws and regulations that determine the reported
amounts and disclosures in the System's financial statements.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the Audit Committee of
their responsibilities
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Responsibilities (continued)

KPMG is responsible for:

— Performing the audit in accordance with U.S. GAAS and that the audit is designed to obtain reasonable,
rather than absolute, assurance about whether the ̂ nancial statements as a whole are free from material

misstatement.

— Performing an audit of financial statements includes consideration of ICOFR as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's ICOFR.

— Communicating significant matters related to the financial statement audit that are in our professional
judgment, relevant to the responsibilities of the Audit Cpmmittee in overseeing the financial process. U.S.
GAAS does not require us to design procedures for the purpose of identifying matters to communicate to
the Audit Committee.

— Communicating if we suspect or identify noncompliance with laws and regulations exist, unless matters
are clearly inconsequential.

— Communicating to management and the Audit Committee in writing all significant deficiencies and
material weaknesses in internal control identified during the audit, including those that were remediated
during the audit and reporting to management in writing all deficiencies noted during our audit that, in our
professional judgment, are of sufficient importance to merit management's attention. The objective of our
audit of the financial statements is not to report on the System's internal control.

— Conducting the audit in accordance with professional standards and complying with the rules and
responsibility of the Code of Professional Conduct of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the official standards of relevant CPA Societies, and relevant state boards of

accountancy.

— Communicating to the Audit Committee circumstances, if any, that affect the form and content of the
auditors' report.

— Communicating if we plan to withdraw from the engagement and the reasons for the withdrawal.

— Communicating to the Audit Committee if we conclude no reasonable justification for a change of the
terrhs of the audit engagement exists and we are not permitted by management to continue the original
audit engagement.

— When applicable, we are also responsible for communicating particular matters required by law or
regulation, by agreement with the entity, or by additional requirements applicable to the engagement.

— Communicating if we have identified or suspect fraud involving; (a) management, (b) employees who
have significant roles in internal control, (c) others, when the fraud results in a material misstatement in
the financial statements, and (d) other matters related to fraud that are, in the auditors' professional
judgment, relevant to the responsibilities of the Audit Committee.

— Communicating significant findings and issues arising during the audit in connection with the System's
related parties.

— Communicating conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about an
entity's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.
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Responsibilities for other information in documents
containing audited financial statements

— The auditors' report on the financial staterhents does not extend to other information in documents
containing audited financial statements, excluding required supplementary information.

— The auditors' responsibility is to make appropriate arrangements with management or the Audit
Committee to obtain the other information prior to the report release date and to read the other information

to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial staterhents or material misstatements of
facts.

— Any material inconsistencies or misstatements of facts that are not resolved prior to the report release
date, and that require revision of the other information, may result in KPMG modifying or withholding the
auditors' report or withdrawing from the engagement.

— We have performed the following procedures with respect to other information in documents:

- We read Management's Discussion and Analysis, which is required supplementary information under
U.S. GAAP.

- We did not audit Management's Discussion and Analysis, but we noted no material inconsistencies
between it and the financial statements.
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KPMG independence quality controls

KPMG maintains a comprehensive system of quality controls designed to maintain our independence
and to comply with regulatory and professional requirements.

— Pre-approval of all worldwide engagements by the audit engagement team through Sentinel, a KPMG
independence and conflict checking system (includes services for/relationships with the audit client, its
affiliates, and its affiliated persons)

— Tracking partner rotation requirements using PRS, the firm's automated partner rotation tracking system

— Automated investment tracking system used by all KPMG member firms (KICS)

— Training and awareness programs, including a required annual independence training deployed globally

— Annual independence confirmation required for all partners and employees and for ail new joiners to the
firm

— Compliance testing programs

— Formal disciplinary policy and process

— Annual reporting to the audit committee regarding independence
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New accounting standards

Effective for

fiscal year
ending In June

Accounting Standards Update

GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities ̂ 2020

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases ̂ 2021

GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before
the End of a Construction Period

2021

GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests—an amendment of
GASB Statemen/s A/0. 14 and No. 61

2020

GASB Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations 2022

^ GASB has issued an implementation guide in June 2019

2 GASB has issued an implementation guide in August 2019
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Report on the financial statements

Independent Auditors' Report

The Governor and

Legislative Fiscal Committee
State of New Hampshire; and

The Board of Trustees

University System of New Hampshire;

We have audited the accompanying statements of net position of the University System of New Hampshire (the
System), a component unit of the State of New Hampshire, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018, the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes In net position and cash flows for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the System's basic
financial statements for the years then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Managen>ent Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and
mainteriance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the net position
of the University System of New Hampshire as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in Its net position
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
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Report on the financial statements (continued)

Emphasis of Matters

As discussed in Note 1 to the finandal statements, in 2019 the System adopted Govemmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 63. Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, and GASB Statement No.
88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to these matters.

Other Matter • Required Supplementary Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management's discussion and analysis on
pages and the required supplemental information on page l>e presented to supplement
the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the GASB who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

^{signed} KPMG LLf^
October , 2019
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Report on the financial statements (continued)

Independent Auditors' Report

The Governor and

Legislative Fiscal Committee.
State of New Hampshire, and

The Board of Trustees

University System of New Hampshire:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying statements of net position of the University System of New Hampshire (the
System), a component unit of the State of New Hampshire, as of and for the years ended June 30. 2019 and
2016. the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flovrs for the years
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the System's basic
financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility ,

Our responsibility is to express ah opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits oontained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about wt»ether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment. Ir>duding the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the finandal statements, whether due to ̂ ud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the net position
of the University System of New Hampshire as ofJune 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net position
and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
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Report on the financial statements (continued)

Emphasis of Matters

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2019 the System adopted Govemmental Accountir>g
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, and GASB Statement No.
88. Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, Including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to these matters.

Other Matter

Required Supplementary Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management's discussion and analysis on
pages and the required supplemental information on page l>e presented to supplement the
t>asic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the GASB who considers It to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements In an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information.and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial staternents, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufHcient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October ,
2019 on our consideration of the System's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the System's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed In accordance with Government Auditing Startdards in considering the System's internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

^(signed) /fPMG LLf^
October , 2019
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Report in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Ottier Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Oovemment

Auditing Standards

The Ooverr>or and

Legislative Fiscal Committee,
State of New Hampshire, and

The Board, of Tfusteesl
University System of New Harnpsihire

We ha^ audited, in acicordance with the auditing standards geheraJly accepted in the United StatM of America
and the starxlards applicat>le to flnanctal audits contain^ in Govemmsnt Ai^ting ̂ ndards, isst^ t>y the
Comp^lier General of the Unit^ States, ttra financial ̂ tements of the University System of New l^mpshire
(the S^tem), a component un|t of the State of New Hampshire,' which comprise the ̂ ement of net position
as of Jiiine 30, 2019, tî e related sbterTMnts of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows
for the year then erKled, and the' related rxjtes to the ̂ ndal statements, arid h^ issued our report thereon
dated October ' . 2019. Our rejxrt includes an emphaste of matter paragraph noting that the System
adopted Governmental A(XOunting Standard Board (GAS8) Sta;^ent No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement
Obliga^s, and C^B Statement No. 86i Certain Disdo^res Related to Debt, Indudidg Direct Borrowings
and bired Ptacertmnts. Our Of^rii^ Is hot modified respect to these mat^.

Intemal Control Over Financial Reporting: •

In planning and perfdrrhing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the System's internal control
over financial reportmg (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opiniph on the effectiveness of the System's intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Sys^'s internal control.

A defidertcy in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the nonhal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will rx)t be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of defidenctes, in intemal control that is less severe than a material weakness yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

/

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described In the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all defidendes In intemal control that might t>e material weaknesses or
significant defidendes. Given mese limitations, during our audit we did not identify any defidendes in Intemal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
t)een identified.
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Report in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards (continued)

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the System's financial statements are free from
material misstatement. we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was r>ot an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to descrit>e the scope of our testing of Internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the System's internal control or
on compliance. This report is an Integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the System's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

^(signed) KPMG LlP
October .2019
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Management representation letter - Draft

October .2018

KPMG LLP

Two Fioanciiil Center

60 South Street

Boston. MA 02111

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We are providing this letter in coanection with your audit of the statements of net position of the
University System of New Hampshire (the "System"), a component unit of the State of New Hampshire,
as of and for the years ended Jime 30. 2019 and 201S. the related statements of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to tlie financial
statements, for the purpose of expressing opinions as to whether these financial statements present fairly,
in ail material respects, the net position, changes in net position, and cash flows thereof in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting
information that, in the light of siurounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment.of a
reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or
misstatement.

We confum. to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of October . 2019:

1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated
April 25. 2019. for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

2) We have made available to you:

a) All records, documentation, and information that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the fmancial statements.

b) Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit:

c) Unrestricted access and the full cooperation of personnel within the entity from whom you
determined it necessary to obtain audit evidence; and

d) All minutes of the meetings of Board of Taistees. committees of the Board of Trustees, or
sununaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared. All
significant board and committee actions are included in the summaries.
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Management representation letter - Draft (continued)

3) Except as disclosed to you in writing, there have been no communications from regulator)' agencies,
governmental representatives, employees or others concerning noncompliance with laws and
regulations in any jurisdiction, or deficiencies in financial reporting practices or other matters that
could have a material adverse effect on the financial statements.

4) We have disclosed to you. in \\Titmg. all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance with laws and regulations, whose effects should be considered when preparing financial
statements.

5) All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.

6) There are no side agreements or other arrangements (either written or oral).

7) There are ho events subsequent to the date of the statement of net position and through the date of this
lener for which U.S. GAAP requires adjustment or disclosure.

8) The effects of all known actual or possible litigation and claims have been accounted for and
disclosed in accordance with paragraphs 96 - 113 of Govemmernal Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 62, CoHiJican'on of Accounlhig aud Financial Reporting Guidance Contained
in Pre-Noventber SO. I9S9 FASB and AJCPA Pronouncements.

9) We have disclosed to you ail known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments whose
effects should be considered when preparing the fmancial statements.

10) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of programs and
controls to prevent, deter, and detect fraud: for adopting sound accounting policies: and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements and to provide reasonable assiuance against the possibility of
misstatements that are material to the financial statements, whether due to error or fraud. We

understand that the term ''fraud" is defmed as an intentional act by one or more individuals among
management, tltose charged with governance, employees, or third parties, involving the use of
deception that results in a misstatement in financial statements that ore the subject of an audit.

11) There are no deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses in the design or operation
of internal control over fmancial reporting of which we are aware, which could adversely affect the
System's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data. We have applied the
defmitions of a "significant deficiency" and a "material weakness" in accordance with the defmitions
in AU-C Section 265.07. Communicating Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit.

12) We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the fmancial statements may be
materially misstated as a result of fraud.

13) We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the System involving:

a) Management

b) Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or

c) Others where tlie fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Management representation letter - Draft (continued)

14) We have disclosed to you all information that we ore aware of regarding allegations of fraud, or
suspected fraud, affecting the System's financial statements communicated by employees, former
employees, regulators, or others.

15) We have no knowledge of any officer or member of the governing body of the System, or any other
person acting under the direction thereof, having taken any action to fraudulently influence, coerce,
manipulate, or mislead you during your audit.

16) Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those measured at fair
value, are reasonable.

17) We have disclosed to you the identity of our related parties and all the related parry relationships and
transactions of which we are aware.

18) The following have been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements:

a) Related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware, in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles, including sales, purchases, loans, transfers, leasing
arrangements, guarantees, ongoing contractual commitments, and amounts receivable from or
payable to related parties.

The term "related party" refers to government's related organizations, joint ventures, and jointly
governed organizations, as defined m GASB Statement No. 14. The Fhmndoi Reporting Entir}\
as amended; elected and appointed officials of the government: its management: members of the
immediate families of elected or appointed officials of the government and its management: and
other parties with s^liich the government may deal if one party can significantly influence the
management or operating policies of the other to an extent that one of the transacting parties
might be prevented from fiilly pursuing its own separate interests. Another party also is a related
party if it can significantly influence the management or operating policies of the transacting
parties or if it has an ownership interest in one of the transacting parties and can significantly
influence the other to an extent that one or more of the transacting parties might be prevented
from fiilly pursuing its own separate interests.

b) Guarantees, whether wrineu or oral, under which the System is contingently liable.

c) The e?ustence of and transactions with joint venmres and other related organizations.

19) The System has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such
assets, nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

20) The System has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect
on the financial statements in the event of noncdmpliance.

21) The System's reporting entity includes all entities that are component units of the System.

22) We have disclosed to you all accounting policies and practices we have adopted that, if applied to
significant items or transactions, would not be in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. We have evaluated the impact of the application of each such policy and practice, both
individually and in tlie aggregate, on the System's current period financial statements, and the
expected impact of each such policy and practice on fumre periods* financial reporting. We believe
the effect of these policies and practices on the financial statements is not material. Furthermore, we
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Management representation letter - Draft (continued)

do not believe the impact of the application of these policies and practices will be material to the
financial statements in future periods.

a) With respect to the System's practice used to report its endowment renim. net of amounts used in
operations as other changes in net position, we have adopted this practice because to do otherwise
would cause volatility in the "Increase in net position from recurring activities" measure which
may mislead readers of the financial statements. The endowment assets are invested to generate
returns over a long-temi horizon resulting in gains (losses) which can vary significantly on an
annual basis due to prevailing market conditions. We acknowledge that the proper presentation is
within non-operating revenues/expenses. We only use the annual payout from these investments
to support ongoing expenses and have limited the income included in non-operating revenues to
that amount.

23) We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of the required supplementary information
which includes, management's discussion and analysis and the schedules of changes in total OPEB
liability, changes in net pension asset and related ratios and changes in total pension liability and
related ratios, in accordance with the applicable criteria and prescribed guidelines established by the
Goveniinental Accounting StanHareis Board and:

a) Believe the required suppiementar>' information, including its form and content, is fairly
presented in accordance with the applicable criteria and prescribed guidelines.

b) The methods of measurement or presentation of the required supplementary information have not
changed from those used in the prior period.

c) The significant assumptions or interpretations underlying the measurement of presentation of die
required supplementary information are reasonable and appropriate.

24) In accordance witli Government Auditing Standards, we have identified to you all previous audits,
attestation engagements, and other studies that relate to the objectives of this audit, including whether
related recommendations have been implemented.

25) We agree with the fmdings of specialists in evaluating the financial statement liabilities and costs
associated with the retirement and other post-employment benefits and to determiue,infonnatiou
related to the System's funding progress related to such benefits for financial reporting piuposes and
have adequately considered the qualifications of the speciahsi in determining the amounts and
disclosures used in the basic financial statements and underlying accounting records. We did not give
or cause any instructions to be given to specialists with respect to the values or amounts derived in an
attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that have had an impact on
the independence or objectivity of the specialists.

26) The projected employer contributions in the Operating Staff Retirement Plan discount rate calculation
are prepared in accoidance with paragraphs 27-29 of GASH Statement 68.

27) We have received opinions of counsel upon each issuance of tax-exempt bonds that the interest on
such bonds is exempt from federal income taxes under section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986. as amended. There have been no changes in the use of property financed with the proceeds of
tax-exempt bonds, or any other occurrences, subsequent to the issuance of such opinions, that would
jeopardize the tax-exempt status of the bonds. Provision has been made, where material, for the
amount of any required arbitrage rebate.

C ?019 kFMG l.uP a Oeiy-varc Iim::c3 I sCm.iv pg:nersri:p sr.z ins J S me-nDoi liffi' cf ifio >'.FMG nenvo.i' c< mcepenosn me~Dor wr-s 'SO
afiiuaieP »vi!n KPMG inieTiaaoiial Ccopeia:;'.^ •, KPM3 li'.ie'naiiopai ■ a S.visr, aniiiy ad ngms reservea I'iDPFS 60'i283



Management representation letter - Draft (continued)

28) There have been no circumstances that have resulted in conimunicaiions from the System's external
legal counsel to the System reporting evidence of a material violation of securities law or breach of
fi^ciary duty, or similar violation by the System or any agent thereof.

29) Significant relationships with affiliated organizations, and tlie financial statements of those
organizations, where required, have been properly recorded or disclosed in the System's fmancial
statements.

30) There are no representations provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements as of
June 30. 2018 and for the year then ended that require modification

Very truly yours.

UiLh'erslt>' System of New Hampshire

Todd Leach. Chancellor

Cathy Provencher. Vice Chancellor

Carol Mitchell, Controller
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Industry and audit committee trends

Inside Higher Ed. 2019 Survey of College and University Business Officers (CBOs)
2020 public higher education audit committee priorities
Top challenges and concerns for audit committee (all industries) in 2020
Top 10 considerations in 2020; university internal audit functions
Oversight considerations - cybersecurity
Consideration of culture

Data privacy trends and insights
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Inside Higher Ed
2019 Survey of College and University Business
Officers (CBOs)

Among the study's findings:

— 62% of CBOs are confident about their institution's financial outlook over the next five

years, similar to most past years.

— Half of CBOs are confident their college will be financially stable over the next 10 years, which

continues to be down slightly from 54% in 2016 .

— Most business officers continue to believe that key campus constituencies are either very
(12%) or somewhat (61%) aware of their institution's current financial health, and that senior

administrators and board members are conveying sufficient and accurate information to key
campus groups about their institution's financial status (87%).

— CBOs are more likely to agree (45%) than disagree (19%) with economists who predict an
economic downturn will occur in the U.S. over the next 18 months. Nearly six in 10 are
concerned about the effect such a downturn would have on their institution, but 55% believe

their institution will be better prepared to deal with the next economic downturn than the one

that began in 2008.
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Inside Higher Ed
2019 Survey of College and University Business Officers (CBOs)

Among the study's findings (continued):

CBOs are much more likely to believe senior administrative and trustees are aware of, and
understand, the financial challenges confronting their institution than to believe faculty
members are.

Most business officers believe that additional colleges will close this year, with about a third

expecting one to five closures, a third expecting six to 10 closures and about a third expecting
more than 10 closures.

Nearly all chief business officers expect there will be additional private college mergers this
year and about seven in 10 predict there will be additional public college mergers.

12% of CBOs say senior officials at their colleges have had serious talks about merging with
another college or university, down from 17% in 2018 but the same as in 2017. 18% of CBOs
believe their college should merge with another institution, including 40% of those who say
their college has had serious discussions about merging or consolidating.

Slightly more than one-fourth of CBOs (28%) say senior officials at their college have had
serious discussions about consolidating programs or operations with another college or
university. Six in 10 CBOs believe their college should share administrative functions with
another college or combine academic programs.

CBOs are most likely to view faculty opposition (54%), a desire to maintain the status quo

(52%) and lack of mission compatibility (48%) as significant impediments to merger or
consolidation.

Seven in 10 business officers see promise in establishing alternative credential programs

(such as certificates) as a source of new revenue for their institution. About half say the same
about creating programs for new audiences, such as senior citizens.

Among seven measures that can be used to assess an institution's financial health, CBOs are
most likely to say that net operating revenues ratio, increase or decrease in unrestricted net

assets, and rate of growth of net tuition per student are very Important metrics used at their
college.

O 2019 KPMG LLP 8 Oela'.vare !;m:iaa l;ars;,ry psnrefship and irie 0 S memoei t;rTn c; die KFMG newor* o! inflepenaen; rr.sTOci !.ftrs op
8ffi;ie:ed wiih KPMG tnie.fiaiioiiai Coo,^eI^llve ("KPMG Ir-iemctionsi. s S^is.i eniiiy Ail nplus (eswved KDPP5 SO'I&j



Inside Higher Ed
2019 Survey of College and University Business Officers (CBOs)

Among the study's findings (continued):

At best, slight majorities of CBOs strongly agree or agree their institution has the data and
other information it needs to make informed decisions about a number of performance-
related areas. However, on several items — including which academic programs to eliminate
or enhance and the performance of administrative technology — the percentage agreeing they
have the necessary information is the highest measured to date.

Business officers are slightly more likely to agree than to disagree their college has the right
mindset, and the right tools and processes, to respond quickly to needed change.

On average, state appropriations account for about 35% of public institutions' operating
budgets, with community college CBOs reporting their college is more reliant on state funds
(39%) than public master's or baccalaureate (33%) and public doctoral CBOs (22%).

On average, business officers estimate that 4.9% of their college's operating budget is
supported by endowment income, including an average 1.9% for those at public institutions
and 8.8% among those at private institutions.

82% of CBOs. up from 68% in 2018, expect the payout rate from their college's endowment to

stay the same over the next year.

One in six business officers whose college relies on endowment income indicate their
college took funds from their endowment over and above levels called for in their normal

spending policy in the past 12 months. Nearly half of private baccalaureate CBOs report their
college did this.

Consistent with previous years, three-quarters of CBOs describe their institution's current
debt level as "appropriate." 14% say their college has too much debt.

On average, CBOs estimate that 4.9% of their college's operating budget is dedicated to debt
service, with estimates of 4.4% among those at public institutions and 5.7% among those at
private institutions.

More than nine in 10 CBOs say they run periodic financial reports with projections to year-
end, most commonly on a monthly basis. They commonly share these reports with the

president's cabinet and the governing board or finance committee.

IT
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2020 public higher education audit committee
priorities

In addition to the audit committee's core responsibilities with respect to financial reporting and
internal controls—including review of external and internal auditor reports and recommendations-
several-hsk areas will receive attention from public higher education audit committees in 2020.
Among the key focus areas and challenges we are seeing are:

Role in aligning institutional culture with risk management imperatives

In light of recent scandals, maintaining integrity of admissions and other core processes,
including data published for external users and stakeholders

Reviewing and refreshing, as appropriate, the institution's ERM protocols

Coordination of auditable "risk universe" between internal and external audit

Campus safety and related compliance, including Title IX

Technology: cyber, including regulatory changes from GDPR, and new systems

Managing conflicts of interest, related party transactions, and Form 990 disclosures

Assessing executive succession planning, bench strength

Evaluating committee charter, responsibilities, effectiveness assessments, orientation
protocol
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Top challenges and concerns for audit committees
'  ■ ' in 2020

Technological innovation, digital disruption, and the complexity of business are

sharpening the focus on risk management and the internal control environment,

according to KPMG's survey of more than 200 U.S. audit committee members, where the
following five key takeaways emerged:

tii
Helping ensure that the finance organization has the talent
and skills to maintain quality financial reporting is one of the
audit committee's greatest challenges.

|-| Cybersecurity continues to be a top concern.

Few are confident that their company's current enterprise risk
* management processes capture "disruptive risks."

Internal audit can maximize Its value by maintaining flexibility
"■ to adjust the audit plan in response to changing business and

risk conditions.

A third of those surveyed said companies should phase out
4uu earnings guidance.

This Is KPMG's
recent "Top 5"
priorities for
public company
audit
committees ...
note that
4 out of 5
(boided) overlap
the priorities of
higher
education audit
committees
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Top 10 considerations in 2020:
university internal audit functions

The opportunity for Internal Audit (lA) to maximize Its influence on the institution and help respond
to risk is ever-increasing. University lA departments should be challenging the status quo to reduce
risk, improve controls, and identify efficiencies and cost benefits across the organization. For 2020,
KPMG believes the top 10 areas to focus on for maximum lA potential are:

1. Data/process integrity - rankings, admissions, fundraising

2. Data automation and insights

3. Technology transformation

4. Cybersecurlty - GDPR, GLBA, NIST, distributed enterprise

5. Research compliance - misconduct, tech transfer

6. Healthcare - policies, compliance

7. Culture risk

8. Horizontal vs. vertical approach to risk/audits

9. Reporting to governance

10. KPIs to measure effectiveness
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Oversight considerations - cybersecurity

Educause, May 2019: "Making the cybersecurity stiategy part of the iT strategy is a mistake.

Don Welch. Chief Information Security Officer, Penn State

Cybersecurity:

Should always be a function of the institution's strategy, not just an IT function

Is reactive and not proactive - i.e., identify, protect, respond, recover
Is asymmetricai- adversaries have options we do not ... What is valuable to them?
"Threats" vs. "risks" - thinking, evolving, reactive adversaries

Constraints:

Funding

Laws and regulations

Talent/resources

Culture/accountability

Governance

Committee oversight - strategy, stakeholders

At rrfw
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Consideration of culture

Higher education, healthcare, research, auxiliary enterprises - complexity
Policies:

Too many
Many outdated
Many in conflict
Inconsistent application - faculty and administration
Lack of employee awareness/confusion
Public institutions: state laws and regulations

Lack of cohesive and consistent training programs

Decentralization of operations
Lack of KPIs

Focus should not be solely on threats (e.g., collaboration)

Internal audit can be instrumental in assessment

rj
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What's next; Data privacy trends and insights

— Over the past few years, there's been a sea change around data privacy. Globally,
GDPR which is currently In effect, and current and emerging regulations create a global
complex landscape for global companies to navigate

— Building a privacy program from the ground up, and fine tuning a program within the
diverse and complicated environments can be a daunting proposition

— KPMG's new video related to data privacy explores a variety of important aspects
regarding not only the trends we are seeing in the marketplace, but also how
organizations need to think holistically in order build and sustain their data privacy
program.

— To learn more, click on the video below:
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The information coniained herein is of a general nature and is not intended to address the
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